
SPECIAL MEETING 
A G E N D A 

March 21, 2024 
3:00 p.m. 

Meeting will be held at:  
Workforce Assistance Center – Executive Conference Room 
2037 W. Cleveland Avenue, Madera, CA 93637, 559-662-4589 

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION FOR ANY INDIVIDUAL WITH A DISABILITY Pursuant to the Rehabilitation 
Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, any individual with a disability who requires reasonable 
accommodation to attend or participate in a meeting or function of the Madera County Workforce Investment 
Corporation, may request assistance by contacting the Executive Assistant at Madera County Workforce Investment 
Corporation office, 2037 W. Cleveland Avenue, Madera, CA 93637; Telephone 559/662-4589; CRS 711; Fax 
559/673-1794. 

This agenda and supporting documents relating to the items on this agenda are available through the Madera 
County Workforce Investment Corporation (MCWIC) website at http://www.maderaworkforce.org/mcwic-meetings-
and-agenda/. These documents are also available at the Workforce Assistance Center – office of the Executive 
Director. MCWIC is an equal Opportunity Employer/Program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon 
request.  

1.0 Call to Order 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

2.0 Additions to the Agenda 

Items identified after preparation of the agenda for which there is a need to take immediate action. Two-thirds 
vote required for consideration (Government Code Section 54954.2(b)(2)) 

3.0 Public Comment 

This time is made available for comment from the public on matters within the Board’s jurisdiction. The 
comment period will be limited to 15 minutes. Each speaker will be limited to 3 minutes. 

4.0 Introductions and Recognitions 

5.0 Adoption of Board Agenda 

6.0 Consent Calendar 

6.1 Consideration of approval of the February 22, 2024, Madera County Workforce Investment 
Corporation (MCWIC) meeting minutes. 

7.0 Action Items 

7.1 Review of Form 990 2022 tax returns by the MCWIC Board of Directors in preparation for submittal to 
the IRS. 

7.2 Consideration of approval of Section 125 Premium Only Plan (POP) effective January 1, 2024, to allow 
employees to pay for dependent benefit coverage on a pre-tax basis. 

7.3 Consideration of approval of the revised MCWIC Bylaws to include a minimum Board meeting 
schedule of up to 4 times a year. 

1

http://www.maderaworkforce.org/mcwic-meetings-and-agenda/
http://www.maderaworkforce.org/mcwic-meetings-and-agenda/


8.0 Information Items 

 8.1 Success Stories 

 8.2 Update on Workforce Development Board (WDB) of Madera County  

 8.3 Unemployment Insurance (UI) Claims Information 

9.0 Written Communication 

 9.1 Annual Review 85% Formula Grant Fiscal Year 2022-23 Final Monitoring Report 

10.0 Open Discussion/Reports/Information 
 

10.1 Board Members 
 

10.2 Staff 

11.0 Next Meeting 

 April 25, 2024 

12.0 Adjournment 
 

2



MINUTES 

February 22, 2024 
Convened at: 

Workforce Assistance Center – Conference Room 
2037 W. Cleveland Avenue 
Madera, CA 93637 

49169 Road 426 
Oakhurst, CA 93644 

PRESENT: Debi Bray, Roger Leach, Gabriel Mejia, Mattie Mendez, Tim Riche 

ABSENT: Ramona Davie 

GUEST: Jarad Schoettler, Rose Deleon 

STAFF: Nicki Martin, Jessica Roche, Maiknue Vang, Bertha Vega 

1.0 Call to Order 

Meeting called to order at 3:00 p.m. by Chair Debi Bray. 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

2.0 Additions to the Agenda 

None. 

3.0 Public Comment 

None.  

4.0 Introductions and Recognitions 

Jarad Schoettler was introduced. He will be providing information on commercial building insurance. Rose 
Deleon was recognized by the Board. Rose is retiring and moving away from the area after 24 years of service. 
She is one month shy of completing 25 years of service. She was instrumental in training front staff and helped 
develop many processes and forms currently in use. She started as an office assistant at the front desk in 
1999.  

5.0 Adoption of Board Agenda 

Mattie Mendez moved to adopt the agenda, seconded by Tim Riche. 

Approved – Unanimous 

Yes: Debi Bray, Gabriel Mejia, Mattie Mendez, Tim Riche 

6.0 Consent Calendar 

6.1 Consideration of approval of the January 25, 2024, Madera County Workforce Investment 
Corporation (MCWIC) meeting minutes. 

6.2 Consideration of approval of the re-appointment of Debi Bray to the MCWIC Board for an 
additional 3-year term ending on March 2, 2027. 

AGENDA PACKET 6.1

3



Mattie Mendez moved to approve the Consent Calendar, seconded by Tim Riche 

Approved – Unanimous 

Yes: Debi Bray, Gabriel Mejia, Mattie Mendez, Tim Riche 

7.0 Action Items 

7.1 Discussion and consideration to allow MCWIC to potentially bind commercial building 
insurance if found more cost effective. 

Staff were contacted about the building insurance on the same day it expired by Creekside. Jessica 
Roche, Controller, has been working with Creekside and Jarad Schoettler on insurance information 
and quotes. The current lease states that Creekside will obtain the building insurance and MCWIC will 
reimburse the cost to Creekside. Creekside notified MCWIC that the bids they were receiving were 
substantially higher than the current rate and they asked if MCWIC was willing to search for and obtain 
the building insurance themselves in the hope that they would be able to get a more reasonable price. 
Jessica has been working with Jarad, HUB International, for quotes. They are working together to 
obtain a policy through Hartford. If MCWIC gets a policy, it would be less money out of the budget. 
Because of the late notice for the insurance expiration, Creekside had to bind/buy a policy and is 
obligated to have a policy in place for a minimum of 3 months. Because of this, MCWIC may 
potentially have 3 months of very high insurance premiums. If the Board will allow it, staff can search 
for and obtain a lower cost insurance. Working with Jarad, staff anticipate finding a policy that may be 
$10,000 to $15,000 less than the $52,531 rate Creekside obtained. The need for new building 
insurance came about after Creekside moved ownership of the building. The lease language would 
also need to be changed from MCWIC reimbursing Creekside for the cost to MCWIC obtaining the 
insurance. Staff will consult with legal counsel to make sure the appropriate language is used on the 
document. Madera Unified School District is aware of the situation and is agreeable with MCWIC 
obtaining a more reasonable rate. A possible drawback to MCWIC obtaining the insurance would be 
that if there was a loss to the building, that would affect the loss/claim history. The issue would be 
covered by the policy, but the loss would show up on MCWIC’s claim history. It was recommended that 
the building insurance policy language be amended to include language that requires a 60- or 90-day 
notice for insurance expiration/renewal so that staff have as much advance notice as possible. If the 
policy stays with Creekside, staff will make sure that revised language to address insurance expiration 
be included. Currently, MCWIC has a business owner policy which includes liability and business 
personal property. Building insurance can be added to that policy.  

Roger Leach moved to have staff search for building insurance to find the most cost-effective plan, 
seconded by Tim Riche.  

Approved – Unanimous 

Yes: Debi Bray, Roger Leach, Mattie Mendez, Tim Riche 

7.2 Consideration of approval of the MCWIC year-to-date financial reports for period ending 
December 31, 2023. 

Staff presented the year-to-date reports ending December 31st. We are midway through the program 
year. Training expenditures are coming in slightly lower in terms of direct-client costs. Staff are 
continuing to work hard to get participants into trainings. There is still a decent amount of funds for 
participant trainings. Participant numbers are higher than last year. The high balance of training funds 
is also due to the high carry-in from last program year. The Workforce Development Board also 
revised some policies that removed additional barriers that may have prevented participants from 
obtaining training through Workforce. Once the building insurance is finalized, a budget adjustment will 
be brought back to the Board for consideration.  

Gabriel Mejia moved to approve, seconded by Mattie Mendez. 

Approved – Unanimous 

4



Yes: Debi Bray, Gabriel Mejia, Mattie Mendez, Tim Riche 

7.3 Discussion and consideration of revising the MCWIC Board meeting schedule to align with 
revised Chief Local Elected Official (CLEO) agreement approved by the BOS on February 6, 
2024.  

The revised CLEO was approved by the Board of Supervisors at their meeting on February 6, 2024. 
The revisions included changing approval of the financial reports from being approved on a monthly 
basis to being approved quarterly. Now that the CLEO only requires quarterly financial reports, does 
the Board want to continue to meet monthly or would they consider meeting every other month or on a 
quarterly basis? As an example, because the financials are no longer required every month, if the 
Board was to meet in March, there would be no financials to approve.  The current bylaws do not 
specify how often the Board is supposed to meet. The Workforce Development Board (WDB) currently 
meets every other month. It was suggested that meeting quarterly was too far out and that the bylaws 
should be revised to include language that states that the Board will meet a minimum of 4 times a year 
which would allow for a change to bi-monthly should the Board decide on it. It was also suggested that 
the Board could finish out the program year meeting monthly and start a new meeting schedule the 
next program year.  

Tim Riche moved to table item 7.3, seconded by Gabriel Mejia. 

Approved – Unanimous 

Yes: Debi Bray, Gabriel Mejia, Mattie Mendez, Tim Riche 

8.0 Information Items 

8.1 Success Stories 

Information provided within the agenda packet. Mattie Mendez noted that this success story reflected a 
success for 3 entities: the participant, MCWIC and Probation.  

8.2 Update on Workforce Development Board (WDB) of Madera County 

Information provided within the agenda packet. 

8.3 Beaudette Inc.’s One Stop Operator (OSO) report for the period of October 1, 2023, through 
December 31, 2023. 

Information provided within the agenda packet. 

8.4 WIOA Formula and Special Projects Quarterly Program Overview 

Information provided within the agenda packet. 
8.5 Program Impact Report 

Information provided within the agenda packet. The Program Impact Report reflects information from 
7/1/23 to 12/31/23. The previous report provided information for the entire 2022-2023 program year. 
This information will also be provided to the Board of Supervisors. Workforce has already provided 
more services at the half-way mark for the current year than the entire previous program year – 
especially around the trainings provided. Enrollments and new participant counts have also increased 
from last year.  

8.6 Unemployment Insurance (UI) Claims Information 

Information provided within the agenda packet. 
8.7 Form 700 due April 1, 2024 

Information provided within the agenda packet. 

5



9.0 Written Communication 

None.  

10.0 Open Discussion/Reports/Information 

10.1 Board Members 
• Mattie Mendez: VITA services is offering free tax preparation at the Community Action Partnership of

Madera County (CAPMC) on Saturdays from 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. These services are free to adults
with an income of less than $73,000 per year.

10.2 Staff 
• Maiknue Vang: The Small Business Development Center (SBDC) will be recognizing the Workforce 

Development Board of Madera County as their Partner of the Year at their annual luncheon on March 
20, 2024.

11.0 Next Meeting 

March 21, 2024 

12.0 Adjournment 

Tim Riche moved to adjourn at 4:28 p.m., seconded by Mattie Mendez. 

6



AGENDA PACKET 7.1

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



By:

Name:

Title:

CERTIFICATE OF RESOLUTION
The undersigned authorized representative of Madera County Workforce Investment Corp (the Employer) hereby certifies
that the following resolutions were duly adopted by the governing body of the Employer on ______________________, and that
such resolutions have not been modified or rescinded as of the date hereof:

RESOLVED, that the form of Welfare Benefit Plan, effective January 01, 2024, presented to this meeting (and a copy of which
is attached hereto) is hereby approved and adopted, and that the proper agents of the Employer are hereby authorized and
directed to execute and deliver to the Administrator of said Plan one or more counterparts of the Plan.

RESOLVED, that the Administrator shall be instructed to take such actions that the Administrator deems necessary and proper
in order to implement the Plan, and to set up adequate accounting and administrative procedures for the provision of benefits
under the Plan.

RESOLVED, that the proper agents of the Employer shall act as soon as possible to notify the employees of the Employer of
the adoption of the Plan and to deliver to each employee a copy of the Summary Plan Description of the Plan, which Summary
Plan Description is attached hereto and is hereby approved.

The undersigned further certifies that attached hereto as Exhibits, are true copies of Madera County Workforce Investment
Corp's Benefit Plan Document and Summary Plan Description approved and adopted at this meeting.

Madera County Workforce Investment Corp

Maiknue Vang

Executive Director

AGENDA PACKET 7.2

50



Madera County Workforce Investment Corp
Madera County Workforce Investment Corp

2037 West Cleveland Avenue
Madera, CA 93637

Section 125 Premium Only Plan
Plan Document

Effective January 01, 2024

51



TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. Article - Definitions

II. Article - Participation
01. ELIGIBILITY
02. EFFECTIVE DATE OF PARTICIPATION
03. APPLICATION TO PARTICIPATE
04. TERMINATION OF PARTICIPATION
05. TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT

III. Article - Contributions to the Plan
01. SALARY REDIRECTION
02. APPLICATION OF CONTRIBUTIONS
03. PERIODIC CONTRIBUTIONS

IV. Article - Benefits
01. BENEFIT OPTIONS
02. DESCRIPTION OF BENEFITS
03. NONDISCRIMINATION REQUIREMENTS
04. NON-TAX DEPENDENT COVERAGE

V. Article - Participant Elections
01. INITIAL ELECTIONS
02. SUBSEQUENT ANNUAL ELECTIONS
03. CHANGE OF ELECTIONS

VI. Article - Administration
01. PLAN ADMINISTRATION
02. EXAMINATION OF RECORDS
03. PAYMENT OF EXPENSES
04. APPLICATION OF BENEFIT PLAN SURPLUS
05. INSURANCE CONTROL CLAUSE
06. INDEMNIFICATION OF ADMINISTRATOR

VII. Article - Amendment or Termination of Plan
01. AMENDMENT
02. TERMINATION

VIII. Article - Miscellaneous
01. PLAN INTERPRETATION
02. GENDER AND NUMBER
03. WRITTEN DOCUMENT
04. EXCLUSIVE BENEFIT
05. PARTICIPANT'S RIGHTS
06. ACTION BY THE EMPLOYER
07. EMPLOYER'S PROTECTIVE CLAUSES
08. NO GUARANTEE OF TAX CONSEQUENCES
09. INDEMNIFICATION OF EMPLOYER BY PARTICIPANTS
10. FUNDING
11. GOVERNING LAW
12. SEVERABILITY
13. CAPTIONS
14. CONTINUATION OF COVERAGE
15. HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

52



16. UNIFORMED SERVICES EMPLOYMENT AND REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS ACT
17. GENETIC INFORMATION NONDISCRIMINATION ACT

53



Introduction
The company has adopted this Plan effective January 01, 2024. Its purpose is to provide benefits for those Employees who shall
qualify hereunder and their Dependents and beneficiaries. The concept of this Plan is to allow Employees to elect between cash
compensation or certain nontaxable benefit options as they desire. The Plan shall be known as the Madera County Workforce
Investment Corp Premium Only Plan (the "Plan").

01. "Administrator" means the individual(s) or corporation appointed by the Employer to carry out
the administration of the Plan. The Employer shall be empowered to appoint and remove the
Administrator from time to time as it deems necessary for the proper administration of the plan. In
the event an Administrator has not been appointed, or resigns from an appointment, the Employer
shall be deemed to be the Administrator.

02. "Benefit" means any of the optional benefit choices available to a Participant as outlined in the
Section titled: "Benefit Options".

03. "Code" means Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended or replaced from
time to time, and any governing regulations or applicable guidance thereunder.

04. "Compensation" means the total cash remuneration received by the Participant from the
Employer during a Plan Year, prior to any reductions pursuant to an Election to Participate form
authorized hereunder.

05. "Dependent" means any individual who is so defined under an Insurance Contract or who is (i) a
Qualifying Child (within the meaning of Code Section 152(c), subject to the exceptions of Code
Section 152(b)) or Participant's child (within the meaning of Code Section 152(f)(1)) who has not
attained age 27 as of the end of the taxable year, or (ii) a Qualifying Relative who qualifies as a
dependent under an Insurance Contract or under (within the meaning of Code Section 152(d),
subject to the exceptions of Code Section 152(b)) (as modified by Code Section 105(b)), as
applicable. Certain provisions of "Michelle's Law," in which the requirement that a Dependent child
have a full-time status in order to extend coverage past a stated age, will generally not apply if the
child's failure to maintain full-time status is due to a medically necessary leave of absence or other
change in enrollment (such as a reduction of hours). Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the
contrary, the Plan will comply with Michelle's Law.

06. "Effective Date" means the effective date of the Plan which is January 01, 2024.

07. "Election Period" means the period immediately preceding the beginning of each Plan Year
established by the Administrator for the election of Benefits and Salary Redirections, such period
to be applied on a uniform and nondiscriminatory basis for all Employees and Participants.
However, an Employee's initial Election Period shall be determined pursuant to the Section titled:
"Initial Elections".

08. "Eligible Employee" means any Employee who has satisfied the provisions of the Section titled:
"Eligibility". However, 2% shareholders as defined under Code Section 1372(b) and self-employed
individuals as defined under Code Section 401(c) shall not be eligible to participate in this Plan. An
individual shall not be an "Eligible Employee" if such individual is not reported on the payroll
records of the Employer as a common law employee. In particular, it is expressly intended that
individuals not treated as common law employees by the Employer on its payroll records are not
"Eligible Employees" and are excluded from Plan participation even if a court or administrative
agency determines that such individuals are common law employees and not independent
contractors.

09. "Employee" means any person who is employed by the Employer, but generally excludes any
person who is employed as an independent contractor and any person who is considered self-
employed under Code Section 401(c), as well as any person who is a greater than two percent
(2%) shareholder in a Subchapter S corporation, a partner in a partnership or an owner or member
of a limited liability company that elects partnership status on its tax return. The term Employee
shall include leased employees within the meaning of Code Section 414(n)(2), unless excluded by
the terms of an Insurance Contract.

10. "Employer" means the C Corporation or any such entity specified in Item 1 of the Adoption
Agreement, and any Affiliated Employer (as defined in the Article titled: "Definitions"), that adopts
this Plan; and any successor, that maintain this Plan; and any predecessor that has maintained this
Plan.

11. "Highly Compensated Employee" means, for the purposes of determining discrimination, an
Employee so described in Code Section 125 and the Treasury Regulations thereunder.

I. Article - Definitions

54



12. "Insurance Contract" means any contract issued by an Insurer underwriting a Benefit, or any
self-funded arrangement providing any Benefit offered for health and welfare coverage to Eligible
Employees of the Employer.

13. "Insurance Premium Payment Plan" means the plan of benefits contained in the Section titled:
"Benefit Options" of this Plan, that provides for the payment of Premium Expenses.

14. "Insurer" means any insurance company that underwrites a Benefit or any self-funded
arrangement under this Plan.

15. "Key Employee" means an employee defined in Code Section 416(i)(1) and the Treasury
regulations there under.

16. "Participant" means any Eligible Employee who elects to become a Participant pursuant to the
Section titled: "Application to Participate" and has not for any reason become ineligible to
participate further in the Plan.

17. "Plan" means the Section 125 Premium Only Plan described in this instrument, including all
amendments thereto.

18. "Plan Year" means the 12-month period beginning and ending on the dates specified in the
Adoption Agreement. The Plan Year shall be the coverage period for the Benefits provided for
under this Plan. In the event a Participant commences participation during a Plan Year, then the
initial coverage period shall be that portion of the Plan Year commencing on such Participant's
date of entry and ending on the last day of such Plan Year.

19. "Premium Expenses" or "Premiums" mean the Participant's cost for the insured Benefits
described in the Section titled: "Benefit Options".

20. "Regulations" means either temporary, proposed or final regulations, as applicable, issued from
the Department of Treasury, as well as any guidance or interpretations issued in connection
therewith.

21. "Salary Redirection" means the contributions made by the Employer on behalf of Participants in
accordance with the Section titled: "Salary Redirection". These contributions shall be allocated to
the funds or accounts established for cost of applicable Benefits provided under the Plan pursuant
to the Participants’ elections made under the Article titled: "Participant Elections".

22. "Spouse" means "spouse" as defined in an Insurance Contract, then, for purposes of coverage
under that Insurance Contract only, "spouse" shall have the meaning stated in the Insurance
Contract. In all other cases, "spouse" shall have the meaning stated under applicable federal or
state law.

23. "Uniformed Services" means the Armed Forces, the Army National Guard, and the Air National
Guard when engaged in active duty for training, inactive duty training, or full-time National Guard
duty, the commissioned corps of the Public Health Service, and any other category of persons
designated by the President of the United States in time of war or emergency.

All other defined terms in this Plan shall have the meanings specified in the various Articles of the Plan
in which they appear.

55



01. Eligibility

As to each Benefit provided hereunder, any Eligible Employee shall be eligible to participate as of
the date he or she satisfies the eligibility conditions set forth in the policy or plan providing such
Benefit (the "Eligibility Requirements"), the provisions of which are specifically incorporated herein
by reference.

02. Effective Date of Participation

(a) An Eligible Employee shall become a Participant effective as of the later of the date on which
he or she satisfies the Eligibility Requirements of the Plan or the Effective Date of this Plan.

(b) If an Eligible Employee terminates employment after commencing participation in the Plan,
except as otherwise provided in the applicable policy or plan providing a Benefit, and such
terminated Eligible Employee is rehired within 30 days or less of the date of termination of
employment, such rehired Eligible Employee shall not be considered a newly eligible employee
and will be reinstated with the same election(s) such individual had before termination. If a
terminated Eligible Employee is rehired more than 30 days following termination of employment
and is otherwise eligible to participate in the Plan, the individual shall be treated as a newly
Eligible Employee and may make a new election under procedures otherwise set forth within this
section or the Section titled: "Initial Elections" below as applicable.

03. Application to Participate

An Employee who is eligible to participate in this Plan may, during the applicable Election Period,
complete an Election to Participate form that the Administrator shall furnish to the Employee. The
Election to Participate form is an irrevocable election made by the Employee to redirect and
reduce taxable compensation to cover the Employee’s applicable cost of Benefits elected, which
shall be applicable until the end of the current Plan Year, unless the Participant is entitled to
change his or her Benefit elections pursuant to the Section titled: "Change of Elections".

Such election shall be effective for the first pay period beginning on or after the Employee’s
effective date of participation pursuant to the Section titled: "Effective Date of Participation".

04. Termination of Participation

A Participant shall no longer participate in this Plan upon the occurrence of any of the following
events: (a) His or her termination of employment, subject to the provisions of the Section titled:
"Termination of Employment"; (b) His or her death; or (c) The termination of this Plan, subject to
the provisions of the Section titled: "Termination".

05. Termination of Employment

If a Participant terminates employment with the Employer for any reason other than death, his or
her participation in the Plan shall cease, subject to the Participant's right to continue coverage
under any Insurance Contract for which premiums have already been paid.

When an Employee ceases to be a Participant, the cafeteria plan must pay the Employee any
amount the Employee previously paid for coverage or Benefits to the extent the previously paid
amount relates to the period from the date the Employee ceases to be a Participant through the
end of that Plan Year.

II. Article - Participation

56



01. Salary Redirection

Benefits under the Plan shall be financed by Salary Redirections sufficient to support Benefits that
a Participant has elected hereunder and to pay the Participant’s Premium Expenses. The salary
administration program of the Employer shall allow each Participant to agree to reduce his or her
pay during a Plan Year by an amount determined necessary to purchase the elected Benefit and to
pay the Participant's Premium Expenses. The amount of such Salary Redirection shall be specified
by the Plan Sponsor and shall be applicable for a Plan Year. Notwithstanding the above, for new
Participants, the Salary Redirections shall only be applicable from the first day of the pay period
following the Employee's entry date up to and including the last day of the Plan Year. These
contributions shall be allocated to the funds or accounts established under the Plan pursuant to
the Participants' elections made in accordance with the Article titled: "Participant Elections".

Any Salary Redirection shall be determined prior to the beginning of a Plan Year (subject to initial
elections pursuant to the Section titled: "Initial Elections") and prior to the end of the Election
Period and shall be irrevocable for such Plan Year. However, a Participant may revoke a Benefit
election after the Plan Year has commenced and make a new Election to Participate (or decline
participation on the Election to Not Participate form) with respect to the remainder of the Plan
Year, if both the revocation and the new election are on account of and consistent with a change in
status and such other permitted events as determined under the Article titled: "Participant
Elections" of the Plan and consistent with the rules and regulations of the Department of the
Treasury. Salary Redirection amounts shall be contributed on a pro rata basis for each pay period
during the Plan Year. All individual Election forms are deemed to be part of this Plan and
incorporated herein by reference.

02. Application of Contributions

As soon as reasonably practical after each payroll period, the Employer shall apply the Salary
Redirections to provide the Benefits elected by the affected Participants. Amounts designated for
the Participant's Premium Expense Reimbursement Account shall likewise be credited to such
account for the purpose of paying Premium Expenses.

03. Periodic Contributions

Notwithstanding the requirement provided above and in other Articles of this Plan that Salary
Redirections be contributed to the Plan by the Employer on behalf of an Employee on a level and
pro rata basis for each payroll period, the Employer and Administrator may implement a procedure
in which Salary Redirections are contributed throughout the Plan Year on a periodic basis that is
not pro rata for each payroll period. In the event Salary Redirections are not made on a pro rata
basis, upon termination of participation, a Participant may be entitled to a refund of such Salary
Redirections pursuant to the Section titled: "Termination of Employment".

III. Article - Contributions to the Plan

57



01. Benefit Options

Each Participant may elect to have his or her full compensation paid to him in taxable
compensation or elect to have the amount of his or her Salary Redirection amounts applied to any
one or more of the optional Benefits or any other group-insured or self-funded Benefit permitted
under Code Section 125, that is offered by the Employer as set forth in the Adoption Agreement.

The Employer may select suitable health and hospitalization Insurance Contracts for use in
providing health Benefits, which policies will provide uniform benefits for all Participants electing
this Benefit.

02. Description of Benefits

Each Eligible Employee may elect to have the Administrator pay those contributions that the
Employee is required to make to the Benefit options described under the Section titled: "Benefit
Options", as a condition for the Employee and his or her Dependents to participate in those Benefit
options.

03. Nondiscrimination Requirements

(a)  It is the intent of this Plan to provide benefits to a classification of Employees that the
Secretary of the Treasury finds not to be discriminatory in favor of the group in whose favor
discrimination is prohibited under Code Section 125 or applicable Regulations thereunder.

(b)  If the Administrator deems it necessary, in order, to avoid discrimination or possible taxation
to Highly Compensated Employees, Key Employees or a group of employees in whose favor
discrimination is prohibited by Code Section 125, it may, but shall not be required to, reduce
contributions or non-taxable Benefits in order to assure compliance with this section. Any act taken
by the Administrator under this section shall be carried out in a uniform and nondiscriminatory
manner. If the Administrator decides to reduce contributions or non-taxable Benefits, it shall be
done in the following manner. First, the non-taxable Benefits of the affected Participant (either an
employee who is highly compensated or a Key Employee, whichever is applicable) who has the
highest amount of non-taxable Benefits for the Plan Year shall have his or her non-taxable benefits
reduced until the discrimination tests set forth in this Section are satisfied or until the amount of
his or her non-taxable Benefits equals the non-taxable Benefits of the affected Participant who has
the second highest amount of non-taxable Benefits. This process shall continue until the
nondiscrimination tests set forth in this Section are satisfied. With respect to any affected
Participant who has had Benefits reduced pursuant to this Section, the reduction shall be made
proportionately among all insured Benefits. Contributions which are not utilized to provide Benefits
to any Participant by virtue of any administrative act under this paragraph shall be forfeited and
deposited into the Plan surplus.

04. Non-Tax Dependent Coverage

a. If (i) Employee Salary Redirections are made to fund Benefits under the Plan, and (ii) the
Employer allows a Participant to elect to cover a Non-Tax Dependent through the
Participant’s coverage under group Medical, Dental or Vision benefit(s), a Participant who
elects to participate in the Salary Redirection program may pay on a pre-tax basis through
salary reduction contributions the Participant’s portion of the premium cost of coverage under
the Employer’s Medical, Dental or Vision Benefits, provided that the full fair market value of
such Medical, Dental or Vision coverage for any such Non-Tax Dependent shall be includible
in the Participant’s gross income as a taxable benefit in accordance with applicable federal
income tax rules. For purposes of this Plan, the Participant electing coverage for Non-Tax
Dependent(s) shall be treated as receiving, at the time that coverage is received, cash
compensation equal to the full fair market value of such coverage and then as having
purchased the coverage with after-tax employee contributions.

IV. Article - Benefits

58



01. Initial Elections

An Employee who meets the Eligibility Requirements of the Plan on the first day of, or during, a
Plan Year will automatically participate in this Plan for all or the remainder of such Plan Year unless
the employee completes the Election Form – Election Not To Participate. For any such newly
Eligible Employee, if coverage is effective as of the date of hire pursuant to the Section titled:
"Effective date of Participation" above, such Employee shall be eligible to participate retroactively
as of their date of hire. Newly Eligible Employee Election amounts will be collected on the first pay
period.

02. Subsequent Annual Elections

a. A Participant will automatically be enrolled in subsequent plan years unless the Participant
terminates his or her participation in the Plan by notifying the Administrator in writing during
the Election Period that he or she does not want to participate in the Plan for the next Plan
Year;

b. A Participant may terminate his or her participation in the Plan by notifying the Administrator
in writing during the Election Period that he or she does not want to participate in the Plan for
the next Plan Year;

c. An Employee who elects to not participate for the Plan Year following the Election Period will
have to wait until the next Election Period before again electing to participate in the Plan,
except as provided for in the Section titled: "Change of Elections".

03. Change of Elections

a. Any Participant may change a Benefit election after the Plan Year has commenced and make
new elections with respect to the remainder of such Plan Year if, under the facts and
circumstances, the changes are necessitated by and are consistent with a change in status
that is recognized under rules and regulations adopted by the Department of the Treasury.
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if the rules and regulations conflict with
provisions of this Plan, then such rules and regulations shall control.

In general, a change in election is not consistent if the change in status is the Participant’s
divorce, annulment or legal separation from a spouse, the death of a spouse or dependent, or
a dependent ceasing to satisfy the Eligibility Requirements for coverage, and the Participant’s
election under the Plan is to cancel accident or health insurance coverage for any individual
other than the one involved in such an event. In addition, if the Participant, spouse or
dependent gains or loses eligibility for coverage under a family member's plan as a result of a
change in marital status or a change in employment status, then a Participant's election
under the Plan to cease or decrease coverage for that individual under the Plan is consistent
with that change in status only if coverage for that individual becomes applicable or is
increased under the family member's plan.

Regardless of the consistency requirement, if the individual, the individual’s spouse, or
dependent, becomes eligible for continuation coverage under the Employer’s group health
plan as provided in Code Section 4980B or any similar state law, then the individual may elect
to increase payments under this Plan in order to pay for the continuation coverage. However,
this does not apply for COBRA eligibility due to divorce, annulment or legal separation.

Any new election shall be effective at such time as the Administrator shall prescribe, but not
earlier than the first pay period beginning after the election form is completed and returned
to the Administrator. For the purposes of this subsection, a change in status shall only include
the following events or other events permitted by Treasury regulations:

1. Legal Marital Status: events that change a Participant’s legal marital status, including
marriage, divorce, death of a spouse, legal separation or annulment;

2. Number of Dependents: Events that change a Participant’s number of dependents,
including birth, adoption, placement for adoption, or death of a dependent;

3. Employment Status: Any of the following events that change the employment status of
the Participant, spouse, or dependent: termination or commencement of employment, a
strike or lockout, commencement of return from an unpaid leave of absence, or a
change in worksite. In addition, if the eligibility conditions of this Plan or another
employee benefit plan of the employer of the spouse, or dependent, depend on the
employment status of that individual and there is a change in that individual’s
employment status with the consequence that the individual becomes (or ceases to be)
eligible under the applicable plan, then that change constitutes a change in
employment under this subsection;

V. Article - Participant Elections

59



4. Dependent satisfies or ceases to satisfy the Eligibility Requirements: an event that
causes the Participant’s dependent to satisfy or cease to satisfy the requirements for
coverage due to attainment of age, student status, or any similar circumstance; and

5. Residency: A change in the place of residence of the Participant, spouse or dependent.

b. Notwithstanding subsection (a), affected Participants may change an election for accident or
health coverage during a Plan Year and make a new election in accordance with the special
enrollment rights provided in Code Section 9801(f) pertaining to HIPAA special enrollment
rights or the Family and Medical Leave Act.

An affected Participant may change an election for accident or health coverage during a Plan
Year and make a new election in accordance with the special enrollment rights provided in
Code Section 9801(f), including those authorized under the provisions of the Children’s Health
Insurance Program Reauthorization Act of 2009 (CHIP); provided that such Participant meets
the sixty (60) day notice requirement imposed by Code Section 9801(f) (or such longer period
as may be permitted by the Plan and communicated to Participants).

Such change shall take place on a prospective basis, unless required by Code Section 9801(f)
to be retroactive.

c. Notwithstanding subsection (a), in the event of a judgment, decree, or order ("order")
resulting from a divorce, legal separation, annulment, or change in legal custody (including a
qualified medical child support order defined in ERISA Section 609) that requires accident or
health coverage for a Participant's child (including a foster child who is a dependent of the
Participant):

1. The Plan may change an election in order to provide coverage for the child if the order
requires coverage under the Participant's plan; or

2. The Participant shall be permitted to change an election in order to cancel coverage for
the child if the order requires the former spouse to provide coverage for such child,
under that individual's plan, and such coverage is actually provided.

d. Notwithstanding subsection (a), Participants may change elections in order to cancel accident
or health coverage for the Participant or the Participant's spouse or dependent if the
Participant or the Participant's spouse or dependent is enrolled in the accident or health
coverage of the Employer and becomes entitled to coverage (i.e., enrolled) under Part A or
Part B of the Title XVIII of the Social Security Act (Medicare) or Title XIX of the Social Security
Act (Medicaid), other than coverage consisting solely of benefits under section 1928 of the
Social Security Act (the program for distribution of pediatric vaccines). If the Participant or the
Participant's spouse or dependent who has been entitled to Medicaid or Medicare coverage
loses such eligibility, that individual may prospectively elect coverage under the Plan if a
benefit package option under the Plan provides similar coverage.

e. Notwithstanding subsection (a), Participants may make a prospective election change to add
group health coverage for the Participant or the Participant's spouse or dependent if the
Participant or the Participant's spouse or dependent loses coverage under any group health
coverage sponsored by a governmental or educational institution, including (but not limited
to) the following: a state children's health insurance program (CHIP) under Title XXI of the
Social Security Act; a medical care program of an Indian Tribal government (as defined in
Code Section 7701 (a) (40)), the Indian Health Service, or a tribal organization; a state health
benefits risk pool; or a foreign government group health plan, subject to the terms and
limitations of the applicable benefit package option(s).

Further, if the Participant or the Participant's spouse or dependent who has been entitled to
Medicare or Medicaid loses eligibility for such coverage, the Participant may elect to
prospectively commence or increase the accident or health coverage of the individual who
loses Medicare or Medicaid eligibility.

f. Notwithstanding subsection (a), a Participant may prospectively revoke his or her election of
group health plan coverage if (i) the Participant changes from full-time employment (i.e., at
least 30 hours of service per week) to part-time employment (i.e., less than 30 hours of
service per week), even if the Participant continues to be eligible for coverage under the
group health plan, and (ii) the Participant, and any related individuals whose coverage is also
to be revoked, intend to enroll in another plan that provides minimum essential coverage and
is effective no later than the first day of the second month after the month during which the
revocation is effective.

g. Notwithstanding subsection (a), if the cost of a Benefit provided under the Plan increases or
decreases during a Plan Year, then the Plan shall automatically increase or decrease, as the
case may be, the Salary Redirections of all affected Participants for such Benefit.
Alternatively, if the cost of a benefit package option increases significantly, the Administrator
shall permit the affected Participants to either make corresponding changes in their

60



payments or revoke their elections and, in lieu thereof, receive on a prospective basis
coverage under another benefit package option with similar coverage; or drop coverage
prospectively if there is no other benefit package option available that provides similar
coverage. This Plan treats coverage by another employer, such as a spouse's or dependent's
employer, as similar coverage.

A cost increase or decrease refers to an increase or decrease in the amount of elective
contributions under the Plan, whether resulting from an action taken by the Participants, an
action taken by the Employer, or an action taken by an Insurer.

h. Notwithstanding subsection (a), if the cost of a Benefit package option provided under the
plan decreases significantly during a Plan Year, the Administrator shall permit the affected
Participants to make corresponding changes in their payments; and employees who are
otherwise eligible under the Plan may elect the Benefit package option, subject to the terms
and limitations of the Benefit package option.

If the coverage under a Benefit is significantly curtailed, and such curtailment results in a
complete loss of coverage, affected Participants may revoke their elections of such Benefit
and, in lieu thereof, elect to receive on a prospective basis coverage under another plan with
similar coverage, or drop coverage prospectively if there is no other Benefit package option
available that provides similar coverage.

If the coverage under a Benefit is significantly curtailed, and such curtailment does not result
in a loss of coverage, affected Participants may revoke their elections of such Benefit and, in
lieu thereof, elect to receive on a prospective basis coverage under another plan with similar
coverage.

If, during the period of coverage, a new Benefit package option or other coverage option is
added (or an existing Benefit package option or other coverage option is eliminated) or a
significantly improved existing Benefit package option is added, then the affected
Participants and employees who are otherwise eligible under the Plan may elect the newly-
added or significantly improved option (or elect another option if an option has been
eliminated) prospectively and make corresponding election changes with respect to other
Benefit package options providing similar coverage.

i. Notwithstanding subsection (a), a Participant may make a prospective election change to add
group health coverage for the Participant, or the Participant's Spouse or Dependent, if such
individual loses group health coverage under a governmental or educational institution,
including a state children's health insurance program under the Social Security Act, the Indian
Health Service or a health program offered by an Indian tribal government, a state health
benefits risk pool, or a foreign government group health plan.

61



01. Plan Administration

The Employer shall be the Administrator, unless the Employer elects otherwise. The Employer may
appoint any person or persons, including, but not limited to, one or more Employees of the
Employer, to perform the duties of the Administrator. Any person so appointed shall signify
acceptance by filing written acceptance with the Employer. An Administrator may resign by
delivering a written resignation to the Employer, to take effect at a date specified therein, or upon
delivery to the Employer if no date is specified. The Administrator may be removed by the
Employer by delivering a written notice of removal to the Administrator, to take effect at a date
specified therein, or upon delivery to the Administrator if no date is specified. Upon the resignation
or removal of any individual performing the duties of the Administrator, the Employer may
designate a successor.

The operation of the Plan shall be under the supervision of the Administrator. It shall be a principal
duty of the Administrator to see that the Plan is carried out in accordance with its terms, and for
the exclusive benefit of Employees entitled to participate in the Plan. The Administrator shall have
full power to administer the Plan in all of its details, subject, however, to the pertinent provisions of
the Code. The Administrator's powers shall include, but shall not be limited to the following
authority, in addition to all other powers provided by this Plan:

a. To make and enforce such rules and regulations as the Administrator deems necessary or
proper for the efficient administration of the Plan;

b. To interpret the Plan, the Administrator's interpretations thereof in good faith to be final and
conclusive on all persons claiming benefits by operation of the Plan;

c. To decide all questions concerning the Plan and the eligibility of any person to participate in
the Plan and to receive benefits provided under the Plan;

d. To reject elections or to limit contributions or Benefits for certain Highly Compensated
Participants if it deems such to be desirable in order to avoid discrimination under the Plan in
violation of applicable provisions of the Code;

e. To provide Employees with a reasonable notification of their benefits available under the
Plan;

f. To keep and maintain the Plan documents and all other records pertaining to and necessary
for the administration of the Plan;

g. To keep and communicate procedures to determine whether a medical child support order is
qualified under ERISA Section 609; and

h. To appoint such agents, counsel, accountants, consultants, and actuaries as may be required
to assist in administering the Plan.

Any procedure, discretionary act, interpretation or construction taken by the Administrator shall be
done in a nondiscriminatory manner based upon uniform principles consistently applied and shall
be consistent with the intent that the Plan shall continue to comply with the terms of Code Section
125 and the Treasury regulations thereunder.

02. Examination of Records

The Administrator shall make available to each Participant, Eligible Employee and any other
Employee of the Employer such records as pertain to their respective interests under the Plan for
examination at reasonable times during normal business hours.

03. Payment of Expenses

Any reasonable administrative expenses shall be paid by the Employer unless the Employer
determines that administrative costs shall be borne by the Participants under the Plan or by any
Trust Fund which may be established hereunder. The Administrator may impose reasonable
conditions for payments, provided that such conditions shall not discriminate in favor of Highly
Compensated Employees.

04. Application of Benefit Plan Surplus

Any forfeited amounts credited to the Benefit Plan surplus by virtue of the failure of a Participant
to incur a qualified expense may, but need not be, separately accounted for after the close of the
Plan Year in which such forfeitures arose. In no event shall such amounts be carried over to
reimburse a Participant for expenses incurred during a subsequent Plan Year for the same or any
other Benefit available under the Plan; nor shall amounts forfeited by a particular Participant be
made available to such Participant in any other form or manner, except as permitted by Treasury

VI. Article - Administration

62



regulations. Amounts in the Benefit Plan surplus shall first be used to defray any administrative
costs and experience losses and thereafter be retained by the Employer.

05. Insurance Control Clause

In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Plan and the terms of an Insurance Contract of
a particular Insurer or other benefit program that is self-insured whose product is then being used
in conjunction with this Plan, the terms of the Insurance Contract shall control as to those
Participants receiving coverage under such Insurance Contract. For this purpose, the Insurance
Contract shall control in defining the persons eligible for insurance, the dates of their eligibility, the
conditions which must be satisfied to become insured, if any, the Benefits Participants are entitled
to and the circumstances under which insurance terminates.

06. Indemnification of Administrator

The Employer agrees to indemnify and to defend to the fullest extent permitted by law any
Employee serving as the Administrator or as a member of a committee designated as
Administrator (including any Employee or former Employee who previously served as
Administrator or as a member of such committee) against all liabilities, damages, costs and
expenses (including attorney's fees and amounts paid in settlement of any claims approved by the
Employer) occasioned by any act or omission to act in connection with the Plan, if such act or
omission is in good faith.

63



01. Amendment

The Employer, at any time or from time to time, may amend any or all of the provisions of the Plan
without the consent of any Employee or Participant. No amendment shall have the effect of
modifying any benefit election of any Participant in effect at the time of such amendment, unless
such amendment is made to comply with federal, state or local laws, statutes or regulations.

02. Termination

The Employer is establishing this Plan with the intent that it will be maintained for an indefinite
period of time. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Employer reserves the right to terminate the
Plan, in whole or in part, at any time. In the event the Plan is terminated, no further contributions
shall be made. Benefits under any Insurance Contract shall be paid in accordance with the terms of
the Contract.

Any amounts remaining in any such fund or account as of the end of the Plan Year in which Plan
termination occurs shall be forfeited and deposited in the Benefit Plan surplus.

VII. Article - Amendment or Termination of Plan

64



01. Plan Interpretation

All provisions of this Plan shall be governed and interpreted by the Employer, or it's delegated
Administrator, as applicable, in its full and complete discretion and shall be otherwise applied in a
uniform, nondiscriminatory manner. This Plan shall be read in its entirety and not severed except
as provided in the Section titled: "Severability".

02. Gender and Number

Wherever any words are used herein in the masculine, or feminine, or are gender neutral, they
shall be construed as though they were also used in another gender in all cases where they would
so apply, and whenever any words are used herein in the singular or plural form, they shall be
construed as though they were also used in the other form in all cases where they would so apply.

03. Written Document

This Plan document, in conjunction with any separate written document which may be required by
law, is intended to satisfy the written Plan requirement of Code Section 125 and any Regulations
thereunder relating to Cafeteria Plans.

04. Exclusive Benefit

This Plan shall be maintained for the exclusive benefit of the Employees who participate in the
Plan.

05. Participant's Rights

This Plan shall not be deemed to constitute an employment contract between the Employer and
any Participant or to be a consideration or an inducement for the employment of any Participant or
Employee. Nothing contained in this Plan shall be deemed (i) to give any Participant, or
(ii)Employee the right to be retained in the service of the Employer or to interfere with the right of
the Employer to discharge any Participant or Employee at any time regardless of the effect which
such discharge shall have upon him as a Participant of this Plan.

06. Action by the Employer

Whenever under the terms of the Plan the Employer is permitted or required to do or perform any
act or matter or thing, it shall be done and performed by a person duly authorized by the Employer
to do so.

07. Employer's Protective Clauses

a. Upon the failure of the Employer to obtain the insurance contemplated by this Plan (whether
as a result of negligence, gross neglect or otherwise), a Participant's Benefits shall be limited
to the insurance premium(s), if any, that remained unpaid for the period in question and the
actual insurance proceeds, if any, received by the Employer or the Participant as a result of
the Participant's claim.

b. The Employer's liability to a Participant shall only extend to and shall be limited to any
payment actually received by the Employer from the Insurer. In the event that the full
insurance Benefit contemplated is not promptly received by the Employer within a reasonable
time after submission of a claim, then the Employer shall notify the Participant of such facts
and the Employer shall no longer have any legal obligation whatsoever (except to execute
any document called for by a settlement reached by the Participant). The Participant shall be
free to settle, compromise or refuse the claim as the Participant, in his or her sole discretion,
shall see fit.

c. The Employer shall not be responsible for the validity of any Insurance Contract issued
hereunder or for the failure on the part of the Insurer to make payments provided for under
any Insurance Contract. Once insurance is applied for or obtained, the Employer shall not be
liable for any loss which may result from the failure to pay Premiums to the extent Premium
notices are not received by the Employer.

08. No Guarantee of Tax Consequences

Neither the Administrator nor the Employer makes any commitment or guarantee that any
amounts paid to or for the benefit of a Participant under the Plan will be excludable from the
Participant's gross income for federal or state income tax purposes, or that any other federal or
state tax treatment will apply to or be available to any Participant. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
the rights of Participants under this Plan shall be legally enforceable.

09. Indemnification of Employer by Participants

VIII. Article - Miscellaneous

65



If any Participant receives one or more payments or reimbursements under the Plan that are not
for a permitted Benefit, such Participant shall indemnify and reimburse the Employer for any
liability it may incur for failure to withhold federal or state income tax or Social Security tax from
such payments or reimbursements. However, such indemnification and reimbursement shall not
exceed the amount of additional federal and state income tax that the Participant would have
owed if the payments or reimbursements had been made to the Participant as regular cash
compensation, plus the Participant's share of any Social Security tax that would have been paid on
such compensation, less any such additional income and Social Security tax actually paid by the
Participant.

10. Funding

Unless otherwise required by law, contributions to the Plan need not be placed in trust or
dedicated to a specific Benefit, but shall instead be considered general assets of the Employer
until the Premium Expense required under the Plan has been paid. Furthermore, and unless
otherwise required by law, nothing herein shall be construed to require the Employer or the
Administrator to maintain any fund or segregate any amount for the benefit of any Participant, and
no Participant or other person shall have any claim against, right to, or security or other interest
in, any fund, account or asset of the Employer from which any payment under the Plan may be
made.

11. Governing Law

This Plan is governed by the Code and the Treasury regulations issued thereunder (as they might
be amended from time to time). In no event does the Employer guarantee the favorable tax
treatment sought by this Plan. To the extent not preempted by federal law, the provisions of this
Plan shall be construed, enforced and administered according to the laws of the state of California.

12. Severability

If any provision of the Plan is held invalid or unenforceable, its invalidity or unenforceability shall
not affect any other provisions of the Plan, and the Plan shall be construed and enforced as if such
provision had not been included herein.

13. Captions

The captions contained herein are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference, and
in no way define, limit, enlarge, or describe the scope or intent of the Plan, nor in any way shall
they affect the Plan or the construction of any provision thereof.

14. Continuation of Coverage

Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, in the event any benefit under this Plan
subject to the continuation coverage requirement of Code Section 4980B becomes unavailable,
each Participant will be entitled to continuation coverage as prescribed in Code Section 4980B.

15. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act

Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the contrary, this Plan shall be operated in accordance
with HIPAA and regulations thereunder.

16. Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act

Not withstanding any provision of this Plan to the contrary, contributions, benefits and service
credit with respect to qualified military service shall be provided in accordance with USERRA and
the regulations thereunder, as well as any other applicable Regulations specific to the rights and
obligations of Employers with Employees on active military leave.

17. Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act

Notwithstanding any provision of this Plan to the contrary, this Plan shall be operated in
accordance with GINA and regulations thereunder.

66



By:

Name:

Title:

Adoption Agreement
For Madera County Workforce Investment Corp
Section 125 Premium Only Plan
The undersigned Employer adopted the Premium Only Plan for those Employees who shall qualify as Participants
thereunder. It shall be effective as of the date specified below. The Employer hereby selects the following Plan
specifications:
1. Name of Employer: Madera County Workforce Investment Corp
2. Effective Date: This adopted Premium Only Plan shall be effective as of  January 01, 2024
3. Plan Year: Your Plan's records are maintained on the basis of a twelve-month period. This is known as the Plan

Year. The adopted plan year begins on January 01 and ends on December 31.
4. Employer's Principal Office:

2037 West Cleveland Avenue
Madera, CA 93637

5. Benefits: All the benefits listed below are included in this plan:
Health Plan. Premiums that are payroll deducted on a pre-tax basis may include the following:

Group Medical Insurance
Group Dental Insurance
Group Vision Insurance

Group Term Life - You may pretax the premium for up to $50k in coverage (Combined employer/employee)
Accidental death/dismemberment (ADD) Insurance  – If premiums are pre-taxed benefits will be taxable
to the employee.

MADERA COUNTY WORKFORCE INVESTMENT CORP

Jessica Roche

  Controller

67



Madera County Workforce Investment Corp
Madera County Workforce Investment Corp

2037 West Cleveland Avenue
Madera, CA 93637

Section 125 Premium Only Plan
Summary Plan Description
Effective January 01, 2024

68



INTRODUCTION
The Company's Premium Only Plan ("Plan") has been established to allow Eligible Employees to pay for certain benefits on a
pre-tax basis. There are specific benefits that you may elect, and they are outlined in this Summary Plan Description. You will
also be informed about other important information concerning the Plan, such as the conditions you must satisfy before you
can join and the laws that protect your rights.

Read this Summary Plan Description ("SPD") carefully so that you understand the provisions of the Plan and the benefits you
will receive. This SPD describes the Plan's benefits and obligations as contained in the Plan document, which governs the
operation of the Plan. The Plan document is written in much more technical language. Please note that if the non-technical
language in this SPD and the legal language of the Plan document conflict, the Plan document will always govern the Plan. Also,
if there is a conflict between any of the insurance contracts and either the Plan document or this Summary Plan Description,
the insurance contracts will control the respective insurance policies or other benefit programs, if self funded. If you wish to
receive a copy of the legal Plan document, please contact the Plan Administrator.

The Plan is subject to the Internal Revenue Code and other federal and state laws and regulations that may affect your rights
under this plan. This SPD explains the current details of the Plan in order to comply with all applicable legal requirements. From
time to time, the Plan may be revised due to a change in laws or due to pronouncements by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS)
or other federal agencies. This Plan may be amended or terminated by the Company. If the Plan is ever amended or changed,
the Company will notify you.

This SPD was designed to provide you with information regarding the Company Premium Only Plan. If this SPD does not answer
all of your questions, please contact the Administrator (or other assigned person). The name and address of the Administrator
can be found within this SPD

Overview
This section contains general information, which you may need to know about the Madera County Workforce Investment Corp
Premium Only Plan.

General Information

1. The name of the Plan is the Madera County Workforce Investment Corp Premium Only Plan.

2. The company has adopted this Plan effective January 01, 2024.

3. This Plan's records are maintained over a twelve-month period. This is known as the Plan Year. The adopted
plan year begins on January 01 and ends on December 31.

4. This Plan is unfunded, meaning that the funds to pay Benefits and to otherwise operate the Plan come from the
general assets of the Employer and not from a separate trust arrangement or fully-insured insurance
arrangement.

Employer Information:

Your Employer's name, address, and tax identification number are:

Madera County Workforce Investment Corp
2037 West Cleveland Avenue
Madera, CA 93637
Federal Employer I.D. Number: 45-5243432

Plan Administrator Information:

The name, address, and tax identification number of your Plan's Administrator are:

Madera County Workforce Investment Corp
2037 West Cleveland Avenue
Madera, CA 93637
Federal Employer I.D. Number: 45-5243432

The Administrator keeps the records for the Plan and is responsible for the administration of the Plan. The Administrator will
also answer any questions you may have about the Plan. You may contact the Administrator for any further information about
the Plan.

Service of Legal Process

The name and address of the Plan's agent for service of legal process are:

Madera County Workforce Investment Corp
2037 West Cleveland Avenue
Madera, CA 93637
Federal Employer I.D. Number: 45-5243432

Type of Administration

69



The type of Plan administration is Employer Administration.

Unless the Plan provides otherwise, the Administrator keeps the records for the Plan and is responsible for the administration
and interpretation of the Plan. The Administrator will also answer any questions you may have about the Plan.

01. How Does This Plan Operate?

Before the start of each Plan Year, you will be able to elect to have some of your future salary or other
compensation contributed to the Plan in lieu of receiving those amounts in cash, and your future salary or other
compensation will be automatically reduced by the amount elected as a contribution to the Plan. The money
contributed  will be used to pay for benefits you have elected based on the options sponsored by your
Employer (and as identified on your "Election to Participate" form). The portion of your pay that is contributed to
pay for the benefits provided for under the Plan is not subject to State or Federal income or Social Security
taxes. In other words, the Plan allows you to use tax-free dollars to pay for insurance coverage, premium
amounts, or other allowable plan contributions or expenses which you normally pay for with out-of-pocket,
taxable dollars.

02. What Happens to Contributions Made to the Plan?

Before each Plan Year begins, you will select the benefits or programs you desire to pay for through the Plan
with your own pre-tax contributions. Then, during each pay period during that Plan Year, the contributions
deducted from your paycheck will be used to pay your portion of your employer-sponsored benefit
coverage. Any contribution amounts that are not used during a Plan year to provide insurance benefits will be
forfeited and may not be paid to you in cash or used to provide benefits specifically for you in a later Plan year .

03. When Is the "Election Period" for Our Plan?

Your initial election period will start on the date you first meet the "eligibility requirements" and end 30 days
thereafter. Then, for each following Plan Year, the election period is established by the Administrator and
applied uniformly to all participants. It will be a period of time prior to the beginning of each Plan Year. The
Administrator will inform you each year about the election period. Your previous elections will be maintained
unless a change request is provided to the Plan Administrator by the deadline of the Open Enrollment period.

04. May I Change My Elections During the Plan Year?

Generally, you cannot change the elections you have made after the beginning of the Plan Year. However, there
are certain limited situations when you can change your elections. For example: you are permitted to change
elections if you have a "change in status" and you make an election change that is consistent with the "change
in status." Currently, Federal law considers the following events to be "changes in status":

Marriage, divorce, death of a spouse, legal separation or annulment;
Change in the number of dependents, including birth, adoption, placement for adoption, or death of a
dependent;
Any of the following events for you, your spouse or dependent: commencement or termination of
employment, a strike or lockout, commencement of or return from an unpaid leave of absence, a change
in worksite, or any other change in employment status that affects eligibility for benefits;
One of your dependents satisfies or ceases to satisfy the requirements for coverage due to change in age,
student status, or any similar circumstance, including a change to cover adult children who have not
attained age 27 as of the end of the taxable year; and
A change in the place of residence of you, or your spouse or dependent.
A change in your Full-Time status that results in a reduction in work hours that are consistently below an
average of 30 hours per week.

There are detailed rules on when a change in election is deemed to be consistent with a "change in status." In
addition, there are separate laws that give you rights to change accident and/or health coverage for you, your
spouse, or your dependents. If you change coverage due to rights you have under the law, then you can make
a corresponding change in your elections under the Plan. If any of these conditions apply to you, you should
contact the Administrator.

If the cost of a benefit provided under the Plan increases or decreases during a Plan Year, then we will
automatically increase or decrease, as the case may be, your salary redirection election. If the cost increases
significantly, you will be permitted to (i) make corresponding changes in your payments, (ii) revoke your
election and obtain coverage under another benefit package option with similar coverage, or (iii) revoke your
election entirely.

If the coverage under a Benefit is significantly curtailed, and such curtailment results in a complete loss of
coverage, then you may revoke your elections and elect to receive, on a prospective basis, coverage under
another plan with similar coverage. In addition, if we add a new coverage option or eliminate an existing option,
or significantly improve an existing option, you may elect the newly added or improved option (or elect another
option if an option has been eliminated) and make corresponding election changes to other options providing
similar coverage. If you are not a Participant, you may elect to join the Plan. There are also certain situations
when you may be able to change your elections on account of a change under the plan of your spouse's, former
spouse's or dependent's employer.

A change in compensation or a financial "hardship" is not a reason to change your election amount.

If you have declined enrollment in the Plan for you or your dependents (including a spouse) because of

70



coverage under Medicaid or the Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP), there may be a right to enroll in
this Plan if there is a loss of eligibility for the government-provided coverage. However, a request for
enrollment must be made within 60 days after the government-provided coverage ends.

In addition, if you declined enrollment in the Plan for you  or your dependents (including spouse), and later
become eligible for state assistance through a Medicaid or Children's Health Insurance Program that provides
help with paying for Plan coverage, there may be a right to enroll in this Plan. However, a request for
enrollment must be made within 60 days after the determination of eligibility for the state assistance.

The Plan may permit you to make a prospective election change that is on account of and corresponds with a
change made under another employer plan that is a cafeteria plan or a qualified benefits plan if the election for
a period of coverage for this Plan is different from the period of coverage (open enrollment) under the other
plan.

05. May I Make New Elections in Future Plan Years?

You will automatically be enrolled in subsequent plan years unless you terminate your participation in the Plan
by notifying the Administrator in writing during the Election Period that you do not want to participate in the
Plan for the next Plan Year.

06. What Insurance Coverage May I Purchase?

Under our Plan, you can choose to receive your entire compensation in taxable compensation or use a portion
to pay premiums on a pre-tax basis for any one or more insured benefits that we decide to offer through the
Plan.

Certain limits may apply on the amount of coverage that we obtain on your behalf. The insurance contracts will
normally control.

We may terminate or modify Plan benefits at any time, subject to the provisions of any insurance contracts
providing the benefits described above. We will not be liable to you if an insurance company fails to provide any
of the benefits described above. Also, your insurance will end when you leave employment, are no longer
eligible under the terms of any insurance policies, or when insurance coverage terminates.

Any benefits to be provided by insurance will be provided only after (i) you have provided the Administrator the
necessary information to apply for insurance, and (ii) the insurance is in effect for you.

If you cover your children (up to age 26) under your insurance, you can pay for that coverage through the Plan.

You may purchase:

Group Term Life

Group Medical Plan

Group Dental Plan

Group Vision Plan

Accidental Death & Dismemberment

07. Will My Social Security Benefits Be Affected?

Your Social Security benefits may be slightly reduced, because when you use part of your compensation to pay
for insurance premiums on a tax-free basis under our Plan, it reduces the amount of contributions that you
make to the Federal Social Security system as well as our contribution to Social Security on your behalf.

08. Do Limitations Apply to Highly Compensated Employees?

Under the Internal Revenue Code, "highly compensated employees" and "key employees" generally are
Participants who are officers, shareholders or are highly paid.

If you are within either of these categories, the amount of contributions and benefits for you may be limited so
that the Plan as a whole does not unfairly favor those who are highly paid key employees, or their spouses or
dependents. These provisions are also applicable if your Employer makes Employer contributions through the
Plan on your behalf.

Your own circumstances will dictate whether contribution limitations on "highly compensated employees" or
"key employees" will apply. You will be notified of these limitations if you are affected.

09. What Happens If I Terminate Employment?

If you leave our employ during the Plan Year, you will remain covered by insurance, but only for the period for
which premiums have been paid prior to your termination of employment. Any amounts that are not used
during a Plan Year to provide benefits will be forfeited and may not be paid to you in cash or used to provide
benefits specifically for you in a later Plan Year.

10. Qualified Medical Child Support Order

A medical child support order is a judgment, decree or order (including approval of a property settlement)
made under state law that provides for child support or health coverage for the child of a Participant. The child

71



becomes an "alternate recipient" and can receive benefits under the health plans of the Employer if the order is
determined to be "qualified." You may obtain, without charge, a copy of the procedures governing the
determination of qualified medical child support orders from the Plan Administrator.

72



RESTATED BYLAWS 

OF 

MADERA COUNTY WORKFORCE INVESTMENT CORPORATION, 

a California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation 

AGENDA PACKET 7.3

73



 i 

ARTICLE I ORGANIZATION .......................................................................................................1 
1.01 Name ........................................................................................................................1 

1.02 General Purposes and Limitations ...........................................................................1 
1.03 Specific Purposes .....................................................................................................1 
1.04 Dedication of Assets ................................................................................................2 
1.05 Nonpartisan Activities .............................................................................................2 

ARTICLE II OFFICES ....................................................................................................................2 

2.01 Principal Office ........................................................................................................2 
2.02 Other Offices ............................................................................................................2 

ARTICLE III MEMBERSHIP .........................................................................................................2 

3.01 Members ..................................................................................................................2 
3.02 Affiliated Persons.....................................................................................................2 

ARTICLE IV BOARD OF DIRECTORS .......................................................................................3 
4.01 General Powers ........................................................................................................3 

4.02 Specific Powers ........................................................................................................3 
4.03 Number of Directors ................................................................................................4 

4.04 Qualifications and Appointment of Directors ..........................................................4 
4.05 Term of Office of Directors .....................................................................................4 
4.06 Vacancies; Removal; Resignation of Directors .......................................................4 

(a) Vacancy........................................................................................................4 
(b) Removal .......................................................................................................4 

(c) Resignation ..................................................................................................5 

4.07 Annual Meeting of Directors ...................................................................................5 

4.08 Other Regular Meetings ...........................................................................................5 
4.09 Special Meetings ......................................................................................................5 

4.10 Emergency Meetings ...............................................................................................6 
4.11 Place of Meetings; Meetings By Telephone ............................................................6 
4.12 Quorum ....................................................................................................................6 

4.13 Adjournment ............................................................................................................6 
4.14 Notice of Adjourned Meeting ..................................................................................6 
4.15 Compensation and Reimbursement of Directors .....................................................7 

4.16 Voting ......................................................................................................................7 
4.17 Management of Meetings ........................................................................................7 
4.18 Rules of Order ..........................................................................................................7 

4.19 Open Meetings .........................................................................................................7 
4.20 Closed Sessions ........................................................................................................7 

ARTICLE V OFFICERS .................................................................................................................7 
5.01 Officers ....................................................................................................................7 

5.02 Qualifications of Officers ........................................................................................7 
5.03 Appointment of Officers ..........................................................................................7 
5.04 Term of Office .........................................................................................................8 

5.05 Additional Officers ..................................................................................................8 

74



 ii 

5.06 Removal and Resignation of Officers ......................................................................8 
(a) Removal .......................................................................................................8 

(b) Resignation ..................................................................................................8 
5.07 Vacancies in Offices ................................................................................................8 
5.08 Chair .........................................................................................................................8 
5.09 Vice Chairs...............................................................................................................9 
5.10 Secretary ..................................................................................................................9 

5.11 Treasurer ................................................................................................................10 

ARTICLE VI COMMITTEES ......................................................................................................10 
6.01 Committees of the Board .......................................................................................10 
6.02 Meetings and Actions of Committees ....................................................................11 

ARTICLE VII EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ....................................................................................11 
7.01 Employment ...........................................................................................................11 
7.02 Duties: ....................................................................................................................11 

7.03 Performance Evaluation: ........................................................................................12 

ARTICLE VIII INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES 
AND OTHER AGENTS ....................................................................................................12 
8.01 Agents, Proceedings, and Expenses .......................................................................12 
8.02 Actions Other Than By the Corporation ................................................................12 

8.03 Actions By the Corporation ...................................................................................13 
8.04 Successful Defense By Agent ................................................................................13 

8.05 Required Approval .................................................................................................13 
8.06 Advance of Expenses .............................................................................................14 

8.07 Other Contractual Rights .......................................................................................14 
8.08 Limitations .............................................................................................................14 

8.09 Insurance ................................................................................................................14 

ARTICLE IX CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS ..............................................................................15 
9.01 Disqualifying Financial Interest .............................................................................15 

9.02 Prior Board of Directors' Approval ........................................................................15 
9.03 Board of Directors Ratification ..............................................................................15 
9.04 Disqualifying Non-Financial Interest ....................................................................16 

9.05 Procedure of Disqualification ................................................................................16 
9.06 Director Contracts or Grants with the Corporation ................................................16 

ARTICLE X RECORDS AND REPORTS ...................................................................................16 

10.01 Records and Reports ..............................................................................................16 
10.02 Inspection of Articles and Bylaws .........................................................................16 
10.03 Inspection by Directors ..........................................................................................17 
10.04 Annual Report ........................................................................................................17 

10.05 Annual Statement of Certain Transactions and Indemnifications .........................17 

ARTICLE XI GENERAL CORPORATE MATTERS .................................................................18 
11.01 Construction and Definitions .................................................................................18 

75



 iii 

11.02 Amendment by Directors .......................................................................................18 
11.03 Authority to Bind Corporation ...............................................................................18 

11.04 Insurance ................................................................................................................18 

ARTICLE XII FISCAL YEAR .....................................................................................................19 
12.01 Date of Fiscal Year ................................................................................................19 

 

76



 1 

RESTATED BYLAWS 

OF 

MADERA COUNTY WORKFORCE INVESTMENT CORPORATION, 

a California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation 
 

ARTICLE I 

ORGANIZATION 

1.01 Name.  The name of this Corporation is Madera County Workforce 
Investment Corporation. 

1.02 General Purposes and Limitations.  This corporation is a California 
nonprofit public benefit corporation organized under the Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation 
Law.  This corporation is organized and operated exclusively for charitable purposes within the 
meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the 
corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law (herein, the "Code").  
The general purposes of this Corporation are: 

(a) To have and exercise all rights and powers, other than those 
specifically designated in WIOA regulations as responsibilities of the Workforce 
Development Board, conferred through Titles I through V of the Workforce  Innovation 
and  Opportunity Act (“WIOA”) which provide guidance for statewide and local 
workforce investment systems that prepare youth and adults for entry into the labor force 
and develop self-sufficiency; 

(b) To do all other things allowed by a non-profit corporation and 
utilize funds from all other sources other than government to effectively educate, train, 
and place individuals with the necessary resources and skills to fulfill employer needs; 
and 

(c) To have and exercise all rights and powers conferred on nonprofit 
public benefit corporations under the Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law of 
California as such law is now in effect or may at any time hereafter be amended, 
provided, however, notwithstanding any of the foregoing statements, this Corporation 
shall not, except to an insubstantial degree, engage in any activities or exercise any 
powers that are not in furtherance of the above-stated purposes of this Corporation. 

1.03 Specific Purposes.  The specific purposes of this Corporation are to 
operate in accordance with and under the provisions of Titles I through V  of the WIOA and the 
applicable regulations as set forth in the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Chapter 20, Parts 
603, 675, and 679-688, as such law and regulations are now in effect or may be amended from 
time to time, in order to : 

(a) Act as the administrative and fiscal entity for the Workforce 
Development Board and to assist the Workforce Development Board in the 
implementation of the WIOA in Madera County, California, in a manner that is 
responsive to the needs of the private sector. 

77



 2 

(b) Act as the provider of Career Services for WIOA Adult and 
Dislocated Worker programs through June 30, 2019, as approved by the State, the County 
of Madera, and the Workforce Development Board of Madera County. 

1.04 Dedication of Assets.  The property of this Corporation is irrevocably 
dedicated to charitable purposes and no part of the net income or assets of this Corporation shall 
ever inure to the benefit of any director, officer, or member thereof or to the benefit of any 
private person.  Upon the dissolution or winding up of this Corporation, its assets remaining after 
payment, or provision for payment, of all debts and liabilities of this Corporation shall be 
distributed to a nonprofit fund, foundation, or corporation which is organized and operated 
exclusively for charitable purposes and which has established its tax exempt status under Section 
501(c)(3) of the Code, and which is qualified for exemption from taxation under Section 23701d 
of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. 

1.05 Nonpartisan Activities.  The Corporation shall be nonpartisan.  No 
substantial part of the activities of this Corporation shall consist of carrying on propaganda, or 
otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation shall not participate or 
intervene in any political campaign (including the publishing or distribution of statements) on 
behalf of any candidate for public office.  The Corporation shall not, except in an insubstantial 
degree, engage in any activities or exercise any powers that are not in furtherance of the purposes 
and objectives described herein.  

ARTICLE II 

OFFICES 

2.01 Principal Office.  The principal office for the transaction of the activities 
and affairs of the Corporation (“principal executive office”) is located at 2037 West Cleveland 
Avenue, Madera, California, 93637.  The Board of Directors may change the principal executive 
office from one location to another.  Any change of this location shall be noted by the Secretary 
on these Bylaws opposite this Section, or this Section may be amended to state the new location. 
 

2.02 Other Offices.  The Board of Directors may at any time establish branch or 
subordinate offices at any place or places, within or without the State of California, where the 
Corporation is qualified to conduct its activities. 

ARTICLE III 

MEMBERSHIP 

3.01 Members.  This Corporation shall have no members within the meaning of 
Section 5056 of the California Corporations Code.  Any action which would otherwise require 
approval by a majority of all members or approval by the members shall require only approval of 
the Board of Directors.  All rights which would otherwise vest in the members shall vest in the 
Board of Directors. 

3.02 Affiliated Persons.  This Corporation may refer to contributors, advisors, 
or other persons or entities associated with it as “members” even though those contributors, 
advisors, or other persons or entities are not members, and no reference shall constitute anyone a 

78



 3 

member, within the meaning of Section 5056 of the California Corporations Code.  The 
Corporation may confer by amendment of its Articles of Incorporation or of these Bylaws some 
or all of the rights of a member, as set forth in the California Nonprofit Corporation Law, upon 
any person or persons who do not have the right to vote for the election of directors or on a 
disposition of substantially all of the assets of the Corporation or on a merger or on a dissolution 
or on changes to the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, but no such person shall 
be a member within the meaning of Section 5056 of the California Corporations Code. 

ARTICLE IV 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

4.01 General Powers.  Subject to the provisions and limitations of the 
California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law and any other applicable laws, and subject 
to any limitations in the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, the activities and affairs of the 
Corporation shall be managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised by, or under the 
direction of, the Board of Directors 

4.02 Specific Powers.  Without prejudice to these general powers and subject to 
the same limitations, the Board of Directors, in addition to any other powers enumerated in these 
Bylaws, shall have the power to: 

(a) Appoint and remove, subject to any employment agreement and, at 
the pleasure of the Board of Directors, the Executive Director  of the Corporation; 
prescribe powers and duties for them that are consistent with law, with the Articles of 
Incorporation, and with these Bylaws; fix their compensation (if any); and require from 
them security for faithful service; 

(b) Change the principal executive office in the State of California 
from one location to another; cause the Corporation to conduct its activities within or 
without the State of California; and designate any place within or without the State of 
California for holding any meeting of Directors; 

(c) Adopt and use a corporate seal and to alter the form of such seal 
from time to time, as in their judgment they may deem best, provided such seal shall at 
all times comply with the provisions of law; 

(d) Approve an annual operating budget and capital expenditure 
budget, to borrow money and incur indebtedness on behalf of the Corporation and cause 
to be executed and delivered for the Corporation’s purposes, in the corporate name, 
promissory notes, bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, hypothecations, 
and other evidences of debt and securities; 

(e) To conduct, manage and control the affairs and activities of the 
Corporation and to make such rules and regulations therefor not inconsistent with 
applicable federal and California law, the Articles of Incorporation or the Bylaws as they 
may deem best; 

79



 4 

(f) Pursuant to authority hereinafter granted, to appoint committees 
and to delegate to such committees powers and authority of the Board of Directors in the 
management of the activities and affairs of the Corporation, except the power to adopt, 
amend or repeal Bylaws or Articles, and except as otherwise set forth herein;  

(g) Approve any action which, under the California Corporations 
Code, would require the approval by a majority of statutory members or approval by 
statutory members; and 

(h) Perform any and all duties imposed upon them collectively or 
individually by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, by any agreement with the State of 
California or the County of Madera, or by these Bylaws. 

4.03 Number of Directors.  The authorized number of Directors shall be 
between five (5) and  nine (9) until changed by a duly enacted amendment to these Bylaws.    

4.04 Qualifications and Appointment of Directors.  Qualification for 
appointment to the Board shall be individuals representing private sector, non-profit, or faith-
based organizations serving Madera County , preferably who have workforce development or 
related knowledge or experience.  Members will be identified through a public recruitment 
process, submission of an application and appointment by the Board. 

4.05 Term of Office of Directors.  Each Director shall hold office for a term of 
three (3) years, and may be re-appointed for additional r terms at the discretion of the Board. 
Reappointments shall  be considered at least 60 days prior to  term expiration date.  

4.06 Vacancies; Removal; Resignation of Directors.   

(a) Vacancy.  Vacancies on the Board of Directors shall be filled by  a 
public recruitment process, submission of an application and appointment by the Board.  
A vacancy or vacancies on the Board of Directors shall be deemed to exist on the 
occurrence of any of the following:  (i) the death or resignation of any Director; (ii) the 
declaration by resolution of the Board of Directors of a vacancy in the office of a Director 
who has been declared of unsound mind by an order of court, convicted of a felony, or 
found by final order or judgment of any court to have breached a duty under Article 3 of 
Chapter 2 of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law; (iii) the increase 
of the authorized number of Directors; (iv) the removal of a Director in accordance with 
these Bylaws;   No reduction of the authorized number of Directors shall have the effect 
of removing any Director from office before that Director's term of office has expired 
unless a resignation has been received. If a Director is appointed to fill a vacancy created 
by a Director leaving the Board prior to the normal expiration of his or her term, the term 
of such successor Director shall be three years from the date of appointment.   

(b) Removal.  A Director may be removed, either with or without 
cause, by a three-fourths (3/4) majority vote of all other Directors at the time in office at 
any regular meeting or special meeting of the Board of Directors.  The Board of Directors 
may set specific attendance guidelines that may cause a Director to be removed for 
failure to attend Board of Directors’ meetings.   

80



 5 

Attendance Guidelines:  A Board of Director who does not attend three consecutive 
meetings and does not provide notice, may be subject to removal from the Board. 

(c) Resignation.  Except as provided below, any Director may resign 
by giving written notice to the Chair, any Vice Chair or the Secretary, or the Board of 
Directors.  The resignation shall be effective when the notice is given unless it specifies a 
later time for the resignation to become effective and begins.  If a Director’s resignation 
is effective at a future time, the Board of Directors may elect a successor to take office as 
of the date when the resignation becomes effective.  Except on notice to the Attorney 
General of State of California, no Director may resign if the Corporation would be left 
without a duly elected Director or Directors.   

4.07 Annual Meeting of Directors.  The June regular meeting of each calendar 
year shall be known as the annual meeting.  The month of this meeting is subject to change, 
however, if the Board of Directors fixes another date and all Directors are so notified.  If the 
scheduled date falls on a legal holiday, the meeting shall be held on the next full business day.  
Each such annual meeting shall be held for purposes of organization, the election of officers, and 
the transaction of other business.  Notice of the annual meeting shall state the matters that the 
board, at the time notice is given, intends to present for action. 

4.08 Other Regular Meetings.  Other regular meetings of the Board of Directors 
will may be held at a minimum of 4 times a year such time and at a location place as the Board 
of Directors may fix from time to time.  The time and place of such meetings will be stated in the 
minutes of the previous meeting of the Board of Directors.  Notices of regular meetings of the 
Board shall include an agenda specifying the place, the day, and the hour or the meeting, and a 
brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting. 

4.09 Special Meetings.  Special meetings of the Board of Directors for any 
purpose may be called at any time by the Chair, any Vice Chair, the Secretary, or a majority of 
Directors.  Notice for such meetings shall comply with the Ralph M. Brown Act.  Additionally, 
notice of the time and place of special meetings shall be given to each Director by one of the 
following methods:  (a) by personal delivery of written notice; (b) by first-class mail postage 
prepaid, (c) by telephone, either directly to the Director or to a person at such Director's office 
who would reasonably be expected to communicate that notice promptly to such Director; (d) by 
e-mail, either directly to the Director or to a person at such Director's office who would 
reasonably be expected to communicate that notice promptly to such Director; or (e) by 
facsimile, either directly to the Director or to a person at such Director’s office who would 
reasonably be expected to communicate that notice promptly to such Director.  All such notices 
shall be given or sent to the Director’s address or telephone number as shown on the records of 
the Corporation.  Notice sent by first-class mail shall be deposited in the United States mail at 
least four (4) days before the time set for the meeting.  Notices given by personal delivery, 
telephone, e-mail or fax shall be delivered, telephoned, e-mailed or faxed at least forty-eight (48) 
hours before the time set for the meeting.  The notice shall state the time of the meeting, the 
purpose of the meeting, that no other business may be transacted, and the place if the place is 
other than the principal executive office of the Corporation.  No business, other than the business 
that was set forth in the notice of the meeting, may be transacted at a special meeting.  The notice 

81



 6 

shall be posted at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the special meeting in a location that is 
freely accessible to members of the public. 

4.10 Emergency Meetings.  In the case of an emergency situation involving 
matters upon which prompt action is necessary due to the disruption or threatened disruption of 
public facilities, the Board of Directors may hold an emergency meeting without complying with 
either the 24-hour notice or the 24-hour posting requirements of Section 4.09 above.  For the 
purposes of this Section, an “emergency situation” shall be defined as those events causing work 
stoppage, crippling activity, or other activity that severely impairs public health, safety, or both, 
as determined by a majority of the Directors.  All definitions, notice and conduct specified in 
Government Code Section 54956.5 of the Ralph M. Brown Act is incorporated by reference. 

4.11 Place of Meetings; Meetings By Telephone.  Meetings of the Board shall 
be held at any place, within or without the State of California, that has been designated by 
resolution of the Board of Directors or in the notice of the meeting or, if not so designated, at the 
principal executive office of the Corporation.  Any meeting may be held by conference 
telephone, as long as such telephonic communications are allowed under the Ralph M. Brown 
Act and all Directors participating in the meeting can hear one another.  All such Directors shall 
be deemed to be present in person at such a meeting. 

4.12 Quorum.  A majority of the authorized number of Directors shall 
constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business, except to adjourn.  Every action taken or 
decision made by a majority of the Directors present at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is 
present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, subject to the provisions of the California 
Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law and the Ralph M. Brown Act, including, without 
limitation, those provisions relating to (a) approval of contracts or transactions in which a 
Director has a direct or indirect material financial interest; (b) approval of certain transactions 
between corporations having common directorships; (c) creation of, and appointments to, 
committees of the Board of Directors, and (d) indemnification of Directors.  A meeting at which 
a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business, despite the withdrawal of 
Directors, if any action taken or decision made is approved by at least a majority of the required 
quorum for that meeting. 

4.13 Adjournment.  A majority of the Directors present, whether or not a 
quorum is present, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place.  If all Directors are 
absent from any regular or adjourned regular or special or adjourned special meeting, the Chair 
may declare the meeting adjourned to a stated time and place.  However, if more than 50% of the 
number of Directors required to reach a quorum are present at the meeting, discussion can be had 
by the Directors on those items set on the agenda and recommendations developed for 
presentation at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting at which a quorum exists. 

4.14 Notice of Adjourned Meeting.  Whenever a meeting is adjourned, written 
notice of the adjournment shall be given in the same manner as provided in Sections 4.08, 4.09 
and 4.10 of this Article.  A copy of the order or notice of adjournment shall be conspicuously 
posted within twenty-four (24) hours after the time of adjournment on or near the main public 
entrance of the building where the regular, adjourned regular, special, adjourned special or 
emergency meeting was held. 

82



 7 

4.15 Compensation and Reimbursement of Directors.  Directors and members 
serving on committees approved by the Board of Directors may not be compensated by the 
Corporation for their services.  However, Directors and members of committees may receive 
such reimbursement of expenses, as may be fixed or determined by resolution of the Board of 
Directors to be just and reasonable as to the Corporation at the time that such resolution is 
adopted; provided that such reimbursement is consistent with the WIOA and relevant policies 
adopted by any agency with administrative oversight of the Workforce Development Board of 
Madera County (so long as such policy is not inconsistent with the WIOA or any federal or state 
statute). 

4.16 Voting.  Each Director is entitled to one (1) vote on each matter submitted 
to a vote of the Directors.  Voting may be by voice or by ballot, except that any Director shall 
have a right to have a roll call vote on request, in which case the clerk shall call the roll and 
record each vote and report the final tally to the Chair. 

4.17 Management of Meetings.  Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be 
presided over by the Chair, or in the Chair’s absence, by the Vice Chair, or in the absence of 
both, by the Secretary/Treasurer, or in the absence of all three, by an acting Chair chosen by a 
majority of the Directors. 

4.18 Rules of Order.  Meetings shall be governed by Robert’s Rules of Order, 
to the extent that such rules are not inconsistent or in conflict with these Bylaws, with the 
Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, or with applicable law. 

4.19 Open Meetings.  All meetings shall be open to the public and conducted in 
conformance with California Government Code Section 54950 et seq., commonly referred to as 
the “Ralph M. Brown Act.” 

4.20 Closed Sessions.  Closed sessions are permitted in a duly noticed meeting 
for specific purposes controlled by the relevant sections of the Ralph M. Brown Act. 

ARTICLE V 

OFFICERS 

5.01 Officers.  The officers of the Corporation shall be a Chair, a Vice Chair, a 
Secretary, and a Treasurer.  The Corporation may also have, at the discretion of the Board of 
Directors, such other officers as may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of this 
Article.  Any number of offices may be held by the same person, except that neither the 
Secretary nor the Treasurer may serve concurrently as the Chair.  Officers may, from time to 
time, delegate certain responsibilities to the Executive Director, if any.   

5.02 Qualifications of Officers.  Officers need not be Directors of the 
Corporation.  The Chair and Vice Chair shall be  representatives of private sector business and 
industry or of the non-profit sector.   

5.03 Appointment of Officers.  Except such officers as may be appointed under 
Section 5.05 below, officers shall be chosen every two years by the Board of Directors at the 
annual meeting through an election process.   

83



 8 

5.04 Term of Office.  Officers shall serve until that officer resigns or is 
removed or is otherwise disqualified to serve, or until a successor is elected or appointed under 
this terms of this Article.  Officers shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors, subject to 
the rights, if any, of an officer under any contract of employment. 

5.05 Additional Officers.  The Board of Directors may appoint, and may 
authorize the Chair or another officer to appoint, any other officers that the business of the 
Corporation may require.  Each officer so appointed shall have the title, hold office for the 
period, have the authority, and perform the duties specified in these Bylaws or determined from 
time to time by the Board of Directors. 

5.06 Removal and Resignation of Officers.   

(a) Removal.  Subject to the rights, if any, of an officer under any 
contract of employment, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by the 
Board of Directors, at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors or by 
unanimous written consent of the Board of Directors, or, except in case of an officer 
chosen by the Board of Directors, by any officer upon whom such power of removal may 
be conferred by the Board of Directors.  The appointment of a new Chair or Vice Chair 
shall proceed as if that position was vacant.  

(b) Resignation.  Any officer may resign at any time by giving written 
notice to the Corporation.  Any resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of 
that notice or at any later time specified in that notice and, unless otherwise specified in 
that notice, the resignation need not be accepted to make it effective.  Any resignation is 
without prejudice to the rights, if any, of the Corporation under any contract to which the 
officer is a party. 

5.07 Vacancies in Offices.  A vacancy in any office because of death, 
resignation, removal, disqualification or any other cause shall be filled in the manner prescribed 
in these Bylaws for regular appointments to that office. 

5.08 Chair.  Subject to the control of the Board of Directors, the Chair shall 
direct, and control the activities and affairs of the Board and its officers.  The Chair shall have 
such other powers and duties as the Board of Directors or these Bylaws may prescribe.  In the 
absence of an executive director, retained either as an employee of the Corporation or as an 
administrative services contractor of the Corporation, the Chair shall serve as the chief executive 
officer and direct and control the Corporation's activities and affairs.  The Chair shall be given 
the necessary authority and held responsible for the administration of the Corporation in all its 
activities and subject only to such policies as may be adopted and such orders as may be issued 
by the Board of Directors or by any of its committees to which it has delegated power for such 
action.  The Chair shall act as the “duly authorized representative” of the Board of Directors in 
all matters in which the Board of Directors has not formally designated some other person for 
that specific purpose.  Without prejudice to such general powers as above described, but subject 
to the limitations, authority and duties of the Chair are hereby expressly declared to be:   

84



 9 

(a) To carry out all policies established by the Board of Directors, and 
to advise on the formation of those policies; 

(b) To attend meetings of the Board of Directors and its committees;          

(c) To prepare plans for the achievement of the Corporation's long- 
range objectives and goals as adopted by the Board of Directors; 

(d) To promote effective and economical working relationships with 
other organizations; 

(e) To represent the Corporation to the public;  

(f) To see that the Corporation is in compliance with applicable laws 
and regulations and to assure review of and prompt action on reports and 
recommendations of authorized regulatory and inspecting agencies;  

(g) To oversee, together with the Board, the performance of the 
Executive Director; and 

(h) To perform any other duty that may be necessary in the best 
interest of the Corporation. 

5.09 Vice Chairs.  If the Chair is absent or disabled, the Vice Chair shall 
perform all the duties of the Chair, and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be 
subject to all the restrictions upon, the Chair.  The Vice Chair shall have such other powers and 
perform such other duties as from time to time may be prescribed for them respectively by the 
Board of Directors, these Bylaws, or the Chair. 

5.10 Secretary.  The Secretary shall: 

(a) Certify and keep at the principal corporate office or such other 
place that the Board of Directors may order, the original, or a copy, of these Bylaws as 
amended or otherwise altered to date; 

(b) Keep at the principal corporate office or such other place the Board 
of Directors may order, a book of minutes of all meetings of the Directors and of all 
meetings of committees, recording therein the time and place of holding said meeting, 
whether regular, special or emergency, and, if special or emergency, how authorized, the 
notice given, the names of those present, the number of Directors present, and the 
proceedings thereof; 

(c) Be the custodian of records of the Corporation; 

(d) Exhibit at all reasonable times to any Director of the Corporation, 
the Bylaws and any requested minutes; 

85



 10 

(e) Exhibit at all reasonable times to any member of the public any 
documents or records that by law the public has a right to see; and 

(f) Perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other 
duties as may be required by law, by the Articles of Incorporation of this Corporation, or 
by these Bylaws, or that may be assigned from time to time by the Chair or the Board of 
Directors. 

(g) The Secretary shall not have a vote.  

5.11 Treasurer.  

 The Treasurer shall: 

(a) Keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate 
and correct books and accounts of the Corporation's properties and transactions. 

(b) Send or cause to be given to the Directors such financial 
statements and reports as are required to be given by law, by these Bylaws, or by the 
Board of Directors.  The books of account shall be open to inspection by any Director at 
all reasonable times. 

(c) Deposit, or cause to be deposited, all money and other valuables in 
the name of, and to the credit of, the Corporation with such depositories as the Board of 
Directors may designate; disburse the Corporation's funds as the Board of Directors may 
order; render to the Chair of the Board of Directors, and the Board of Directors, when 
requested, an account of all transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the 
Corporation; and have such other powers and perform such other duties as the Board of 
Directors or these Bylaws may prescribe. 

(d) The Treasurer shall not have a vote. 

  The Board of Directors may elect to secure in the name of the Corporation and the 
Treasurer a bond in the amount and with the surety or sureties specified by the Board of 
Directors for faithful performance of the duties of the office and for restoration to the 
Corporation of all of its books, papers, vouchers, money, and other property of every kind in the 
possession or under the control of, the Treasurer upon such officer's death, resignation, 
retirement, or removal from office. 

  In the event that the Corporation hires a bookkeeper, accountant, accounting firm, 
or other financial professional, the Treasurer may delegate to such financial professional the 
daily operational tasks but at all times shall be responsible for supervising their activities.  

ARTICLE VI 

COMMITTEES 

6.01 Committees of the Board.  The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted 
by a majority of the Directors then in office, provided a quorum is present, may create one or 

86



 11 

more committees, each consisting of two (2) or more Directors, and other persons that the 
Directors may appoint to serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.  Appointments to 
committees of the Board shall be by majority vote of the Directors then in office.  The Board of 
Directors may appoint one or more Directors as alternate members of any such committee, who 
may replace any absent member at any meeting.  Any such committee, to the extent provided in 
the Board resolution, shall have all the authority of the Board of Directors, except that no 
committee, regardless of Board resolution, may: 

(a) Fill vacancies on the Board of Directors or on any committee that 
has the authority of the Board of Directors; 

(b) Amend or repeal bylaws or adopt new bylaws; 

(c) Amend or repeal any resolution of the Board of Directors that by 
its express terms is not so amendable or repealable; 

(d) Create any other committees of the Board of Directors or appoint 
the members of committees of the Board of Directors; 

(e) Approve any contract or transaction to which the Corporation is a 
party and in which one or more of its Directors has a material financial interest, except as 
special approval is provided for in Section 5233(d)(3) of the California Corporations 
Code; or 

(f) Take any final action in violation of the California Nonprofit 
Public Benefit Corporation Law. 

6.02 Meetings and Actions of Committees.  Meetings and actions of 
committees of the Board of Directors shall be governed by, held, and taken in accordance with, 
the provisions of these Bylaws concerning meetings and other Board actions, except that the time 
for regular meetings of such committees and the calling of special meetings of such committees 
may be determined either by Board resolution or, if there is none, by resolution of the committee 
of the Board of Directors.  Minutes of each meeting of any committee of the Board of Directors 
shall be kept and shall be filed with the corporate records.  The Board of Directors may adopt 
rules for the government of any committee, provided they are consistent with these Bylaws or, in 
the absence of rules adopted by the Board of Directors, the committee may adopt such rules. 

ARTICLE VII 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

7.01 Employment.  The Board may employ and/or appoint an Executive 
Director who shall be the administrative head of the Corporation.  

7.02 Duties:  The Executive Director shall be responsible to the Board of 
Directors.  The Executive Director shall be given the authority to carry out the policies 
established by the Board of Directors.  The Executive Director shall have, but not be limited to, 
the following duties: 

87



 12 

(a) Serve as the administrator of all aspects of the day-to-day 
operations of the Corporation, including operating policies and procedures; 

(b) Make recommendations to the Board for its consideration 
regarding broad policies of the Corporation; 

(c) Develop the overall program and services to be provided by the 
Corporation and its clients; 

(d) Be present either personally or through an appointed representative 
at all Board meetings and be an ex-officio member of all committees;  

(e) Select, employ, control, and discharge all administrative officers 
and employees authorized by the Board of Directors, in accordance with established 
policies and procedures of the Corporation; 

(f) Submit to the Board of Directors an annual budget showing the 
expected receipts and expenditures; 

(g) Require that all physical properties are kept in good repair and 
operating condition; and 

(h) Supervise all business and financial affairs such as the 
maintenance of financial transaction records, collections of accounts, and purchase and 
issuance of supplies in accordance with principles of prudent business management. 

7.03 Performance Evaluation:  The Executive Director’s performance will be 
evaluated annually by the  full Board. 

ARTICLE VIII 

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES 

AND OTHER AGENTS 

8.01 Agents, Proceedings, and Expenses.  For the purposes of this Article, 
“agent” means any person who is or was a Director, officer, employee, or other agent of this 
Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of this Corporation as a Director, officer, 
employee or agent of another foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or 
other enterprise, or was a Director, officer, employee, or agent of a foreign or domestic 
corporation which was a predecessor corporation of this Corporation or of another enterprise at 
the request of such predecessor corporation; “proceeding” means any threatened, pending or 
completed action or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative; and 
“expense” includes, without limitation, attorneys’ fees and any expenses of establishing a right to 
indemnification under Sections 8.04 or 8.05(b) below. 

8.02 Actions Other Than By the Corporation.  This Corporation shall have the 
power to indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a party, to any 
proceeding (other than an action by, or in the right of, this Corporation to procure a judgment in 
its favor, an action brought under Section 5233 of the California Corporations Code, or an action 

88



 13 

brought by the Attorney General or a person granted relator status by the Attorney General for 
any breach of duty relating to assets held in charitable trust) by reason of the fact that such 
person is or was an agent of this Corporation, against expenses, judgments, fines, settlements and 
other amounts actually and reasonably incurred in connection with such proceeding if that person 
acted in good faith and in a manner that person reasonably believed to be in the best interests of 
this Corporation and, in the case of a criminal proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe the 
conduct of that person was unlawful.  The termination of any proceeding by judgment, order, 
settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent shall not, of itself, 
create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which the person 
reasonably believed to be in the best interests of this Corporation or that the person had 
reasonable cause to believe that the person's conduct was unlawful. 

8.03 Actions By the Corporation.  This Corporation shall have the power to 
indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a party, to any 
threatened, pending or completed action by, or in the right of, this Corporation, or brought under 
Section 5233 of the California Corporations Code, or brought by the Attorney General or a 
person granted relator status by the Attorney General for breach of duty relating to assets held in 
charitable trust, to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that person is or was an 
agent of this Corporation, against expenses actually and reasonably incurred by that person in 
connection with the defense or settlement of that action if that person acted in good faith, in a 
manner that person believed to be in the best interests of this Corporation, and with such care, 
including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would use under 
similar circumstances.  No indemnification shall be made under this Section 8.03 for any of the 
following reasons: 

(a) In respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which that person 
shall have been adjudged to be liable to this Corporation in the performance of that 
person's duty to this Corporation, unless, and only to the extent that, the court in which 
such proceeding is or was pending shall determine upon application that, in view of all 
the circumstances of the case, that person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity 
for the expenses and then only to the extent that the court shall determine; 

(b) Of amounts paid in settling or otherwise disposing of a threatened 
or pending action, with or without court approval; or 

(c) Of expenses incurred in defending a threatened or pending action 
which is settled or otherwise disposed of without court approval unless it is settled with 
the approval of the Attorney General. 

8.04 Successful Defense By Agent.  To the extent that an agent of this 
Corporation has been successful on the merits in defense of any proceeding referred to in 
Sections 8.02 or 8.03 above, or in defense of any claim, issue, or matter therein, the agent shall 
be indemnified against expenses actually and reasonably incurred by the agent in connection 
therewith. 

8.05 Required Approval.  Except as provided in Section 8.04 above, any 
indemnification under this Article shall be made by this Corporation only if authorized in the 

89



 14 

specific case upon a determination that indemnification of the agent is proper in the 
circumstances because the agent has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Section 
8.02 or 8.03 above, by any of the following: 

(a) A majority vote of a quorum consisting of Directors who are not 
parties to the proceeding; or 

(b) The court in which the proceeding is or was pending, upon 
application made by this Corporation or the agent or the attorney or other person 
rendering services in connection with the defense, whether or not such application by the 
agent, attorney, or other person is opposed by this Corporation. 

8.06 Advance of Expenses.  Expenses incurred in defending any proceeding 
may be advanced by this Corporation before the final disposition of the proceeding upon receipt 
of an undertaking by, or on behalf of, the agent to repay the amount of the advance unless it shall 
be determined ultimately that the agent is entitled to be indemnified as authorized in this Article. 

8.07 Other Contractual Rights.  No provision made by a corporation to 
indemnify its Directors or officers for the defense of any proceeding, whether contained in the 
Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, a resolution of the Board of Directors, an 
agreement or otherwise, shall be valid unless consistent with this Article.  Nothing contained in 
this Article shall affect any right to indemnification to which persons other than Directors and 
officers of this Corporation may be entitled by contract or otherwise. 

8.08 Limitations.  No indemnification or advance shall be made under this 
Article, except as provided in Sections 8.04 or 8.05(b) above, in any circumstances where it 
appears: 

(a) That it would be inconsistent with a provision of the Articles of 
Incorporation, Bylaws, or an agreement in effect at the time of the accrual of the alleged 
cause of action asserted in the proceeding in which the expenses were incurred or other 
amounts were paid, which prohibits or otherwise limits indemnification; or 

(b) That it would be inconsistent with any condition expressly 
imposed by a court in approving a settlement. 

8.09 Insurance.  Upon and in the event of a determination by the Board of 
Directors of this Corporation to purchase such insurance, this Corporation shall purchase and 
maintain insurance on behalf of any agent of the Corporation against any liability asserted 
against, or incurred by, the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent's status as such 
whether or not this Corporation would have the power to indemnify the agent against the liability 
under the provisions of this Article; provided, however, that this Corporation shall have no 
power to purchase and maintain such insurance to indemnify any agent of the Corporation for a 
violation of Section 5233 of the California Corporations Code. 

90



 15 

ARTICLE IX 

CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS 

9.01 Disqualifying Financial Interest.  Subject to California law regarding 
conflicts of interest, including, without limitation, Government Code Sections 1090 et seq. and 
87100 et seq., as amended, any member of the Board of Directors must obtain the Board of 
Directors’ approval pursuant to Sections 9.02 and 9.03 below and disqualify himself or herself 
from making, participating in the making of, or attempting to influence any decisions of the 
Board of Directors or a committee of the Board of Directors if it is reasonably foreseeable that 
the decision is one in which the Director has a material financial interest. 

9.02 Prior Board of Directors' Approval.  Subject to California law regarding 
conflicts of interest, including, without limitation, Government Code Sections 1090 et seq. and 
87100 et seq., as amended, the Board of Directors may approve a proposed transaction in which 
a Director or Directors may have a material financial interest if after reasonable investigation and 
prior to consummating the transaction or any part thereof, with knowledge of the material facts 
concerning the transaction and the Director or Directors’ interest in transaction, the Board of 
Directors determines in good faith by vote of a majority of Directors then in office without 
counting the vote of the interested Director or Directors, that: 

(a) The proposed transaction is for the Corporation’s own benefit; 

(b) The proposed transaction is fair and reasonable as to the 
Corporation; and 

(c) The Corporation cannot obtain a more advantageous arrangement 
with reasonable efforts under the circumstances. 

9.03 Board of Directors Ratification.  Subject to California law regarding 
conflicts of interest, including, without limitation, Government Code Sections 1090 et seq. and 
87100 et seq., as amended, the Board of Directors may ratify a transaction entered into between 
the Corporation and a Director or Directors in which the Director or Directors had a material 
financial interest if at the next meeting of the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors 
determines in good faith by vote of a majority of Directors then in office without counting the 
vote of the interested Director or Directors, that: 

(a) A committee or person authorized by the Board of Directors 
approved the transaction; 

(b) The Corporation entered into the transaction for its own benefit; 

(c) The transaction was fair and reasonable as to the Corporation at the 
time the Corporation entered into the transaction; and 

(d) It was not reasonably practicable to obtain approval of the Board 
of Directors prior to entering into the transaction. 

91



 16 

9.04 Disqualifying Non-Financial Interest.  Any member of the Board of 
Directors must likewise disqualify himself or herself when there exists a personal non-financial 
interest which will prevent the member for applying disinterested skill and undivided loyalty to 
the Corporation in making or participating in the making of decisions. 

9.05 Procedure of Disqualification.  A Director required to disqualify himself 
or herself pursuant to Sections 9.01 or 9.04, above, shall (a) immediately disclose the interest, (b) 
recuse himself or herself from any participation in the matter, (c) refrain from attempting to 
influence any other Director, and (d) leave the room during any proceedings on the matter in 
question.  The Director may be counted in determining whether a quorum is present. 

9.06 Director Contracts or Grants with the Corporation.  Pursuant to 
Government Code Section 1091.2, as amended, the prohibition against “financially interested” 
public officials in Government Code Section 1090 shall not apply to any contract or grant made 
by the Board, except where both of the following conditions are met: 

(a) The contract or grant directly relates to services to be provided by 
any Director or the entity the Director represents, or financially benefits the Director or 
the entity he or she represents; and 

(b) The Director fails to recuse himself or herself from making, 
participating in making, or in any way attempting to use his or her official position to 
influence a decision on the grant or grants. 

ARTICLE X 

RECORDS AND REPORTS 

10.01 Records and Reports.  The Corporation shall keep: 

(a) Adequate and correct books and records of account;  

(b) A book of minutes of all meetings of Directors and all meetings of 
committees, recording therein the time and place of holding said meetings, whether 
regular, special or emergency, and if special or emergency, how authorized, the notice 
given, the names of those Directors present, the number of Directors present, and the 
proceedings thereof; and 

(c) A copy of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, as amended, 
to date.   

10.02 Inspection of Articles and Bylaws.  All material required to be made 
available for inspection by the public under the Freedom of Information Act or the California 
Public Records Act, as amended, the Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws, books of account, 
and the minutes of the meetings of the Directors, and standing committees, and ad hoc 
committees shall be open to inspection on the written demand of any member of the public at 
any reasonable time.  Such inspection may be made in person or by agent or attorney, and the 
right of inspection includes the right to make copies.  Demand of inspection other than at a 

92



17 

meeting shall be made in writing to any officer of the Corporation.  The Corporation may charge 
a reasonable fee for making copies in accordance with applicable law. 

10.03 Inspection by Directors.  Every Director shall have the absolute right at 
any reasonable time to inspect the Corporation’s books, records, documents of every kind, 
physical properties, and the records of each of its subsidiaries.  The inspection may be made in 
person or by the Director’s agent or attorney.  The right of inspection includes the right to copy 
and make extracts of documents. 

10.04 Annual Report.  The Board shall cause an annual report to be sent to the 
Directors within one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of the Corporation’s fiscal year.  
That report shall contain the following information, in appropriate detail, for the fiscal year: 

(a) The assets and liabilities, including the trust funds, of the
Corporation as of the end of the fiscal year. 

(b) The principal changes in assets and liabilities, including trust
funds. 

(c) The revenue or receipts of the Corporation, both unrestricted and
restricted to particular purposes. 

(d) The expenses or disbursements of the Corporation for both general
and restricted purposes. 

(e) An independent accountants’ report or the certificate of an
authorized officer of the Corporation that such statements were prepared without audit 
from the Corporation's books and records. 

(f) Any information required by Section 10.05 below.

This requirement of an annual report shall not apply if the Corporation receives less than 
Twenty-Five Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($25,000.00) in gross receipts during the fiscal year, 
provided, however, that the information specified above for inclusion in an annual report must be 
furnished annually to all Directors who request it in writing. 

10.05 Annual Statement of Certain Transactions and Indemnifications.  As part 
of the annual report to the Board of Directors of the Corporation, or as a separate document if no 
annual report is issued, the Corporation shall annually furnish to each Director a statement of any 
transaction or indemnification of the following kind within one hundred twenty (120) days after 
the end of the Corporation’s fiscal year: 

(a) Any transaction (i) which the Corporation, its parent, or its
subsidiary was a party; (ii) in which an “interested person” had a direct or indirect 
material financial interest; and (iii) which involved more than Twenty-Five Thousand and 
No/100 Dollars ($25,000.00), or was one of a number of transactions with the same 
interested person involving, in the aggregate, more than Twenty-Five Thousand and 
No/100 Dollars ($25,000.00).  For this purpose, an “interested person” is either of the 

93



18 

following:  (i) Any Director or officer of the Corporation, its parent, or subsidiary (but 
mere common directorship shall not be considered such an interest); or (ii) any holder of 
more than ten percent (10%) of the voting power of the Corporation, its parent, or its 
subsidiary.  The statement shall include a brief description of the transaction, the names 
of interested persons involved, their relationship to the Corporation, the nature of their 
interest in the transaction and, if practicable, the amount of that interest, provided that if 
the transaction was with a partnership in which the interested person is a partner, only the 
interest of the partnership need be stated. 

(b) Any indemnifications or advances aggregating more than Ten
Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) paid during the fiscal year to any officer or 
Director of the Corporation under Sections 8.01 through 8.03 of these Bylaws, unless that 
indemnification has already been approved by the Directors under Section 5238(e)(2) of 
the California Corporations Code. 

ARTICLE XI 

GENERAL CORPORATE MATTERS 

11.01 Construction and Definitions.  Unless the context requires otherwise, the 
general provisions, rules of construction, and definitions in the California Nonprofit Corporation 
Law shall govern the construction of these Bylaws.  Without limiting the generality of the 
preceding sentence, the masculine gender includes the feminine and neuter, the singular includes 
the plural, the plural includes the singular, and the term “person” includes both a legal entity and 
a natural person. 

11.02 Amendment by Directors.  These Bylaws or Articles of Incorporation of 
this Corporation may be amended or repealed, or new Bylaws or Articles adopted, by the 
affirmative vote of a majority of the authorized number of Directors on the Board of Directors.  
No amendment may extend the term of a Director beyond that for which such Director was 
elected. 

11.03 Authority to Bind Corporation.  The Board of Directors, except as in these 
Bylaws otherwise provided, may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into 
any contract or execute any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, and such 
authority may be general or confined to specific instances; and unless so authorized by the Board 
of Directors no officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the 
Corporation by any contract or engagement, or to pledge its credit, or to render it liable for any 
purpose in any amount. 

11.04 Insurance.  The Corporation shall have the right to purchase and maintain 
insurance to the full extent permitted by law on behalf of its officers, Directors, employees, and 
other agents, against any liability asserted against or incurred by any officer, Director, employee, 
or agent in such capacity or arising out of the officer’s, Director’s, employee’s, or agent’s status 
as such. 

94



19 

ARTICLE XII 

FISCAL YEAR 

12.01 Date of Fiscal Year.  The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on the 
first day of July and end on the last day of June in each year. 

95



20 

CERTIFICATE OF ADOPTION 

I certify that I am the duly appointed and authorized Secretary of MADERA 
COUNTY WORKFORCE INVESTMENT CORPORATION, California nonprofit public benefit 
corporation, that the above Restated Bylaws, consisting of eighteen (18) pages, are the Restated 
Bylaws of this Corporation as approved and ratified by Board of Directors of this Corporation on  
, and that said Restated Bylaws have not been amended or modified since the date thereof. 

Executed on at Madera, California. 

____________________________ 
Maiknue Vang, Secretary 

96



Agenda Item 8.1 

 Consent  Action  Information 

To: Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation 
From: Maiknue Vang, Executive Director 

Date: March 21, 2024 
Subject: Success Stories 

Information: 
Successful program participants have been invited to share information about their experience working with 
our system, and how their participation contributed to positive results. 

Financing: 

Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 

97



success story
M. Suarez

 I was recently paroled from prison and knew
 I wanted to do something different. I opted to 
 get my commercial driver license. I had heard a 
 lot of good things about Workforce and was 

 recommended to go and inquire about assistance to get 
        my CDL. From the first day I walked into the office they

were all very helpful. I would say that my experience with the Workforce was a
very good one overall and would also recommend them to someone else. Without
Workforce and my case worker, it would have been a lot harder to get to the
position that I am in now.

Thanks to Workforce and my dedication to get ahead in life I am now employed in
a big underground construction company, where I move heavy equipment around
to different jobsites and get to operate them. I am moving up in the company. I
initially started with a wage of $24 per hour and I am now making $27 per hour. I
am very grateful to Workforce and Andrea Galindo my case worker for all the
help. 

98

AGENDA PACKET 8.1

AGENDA ITEM 8.1



Agenda Item 8.2 

 Consent  Action  Information 

To: Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation 
From: Maiknue Vang, Executive Director 

Date: March 21, 2024 
Subject: Update on Workforce Development Board (WDB) of Madera County 

Information: 

The WDB Executive Committee had a follow up, in-person, meeting with Bob Lanter/CWA on 
March 15, 2024, to continue plotting specific tasks over the next 18 to 24 months under each of 
the 5 strategic initiatives identified during January’s action planning workshop. The draft timeline 
and action plan will go to the full board for review and approval in April. 

Financing: 

Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act/James Irvine Foundation 

99



Agenda Item 8.3 

 Consent  Action  Information 

To: Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation 
From: Maiknue Vang, Executive Director 

Date: March 21, 2024 
Subject: Unemployment Insurance (UI) Claims Information 

Information: 
The most recent data on UI Claims for the period of February 10, 2024, through March 9, 2024, for 
Madera County is being provided for the Board’s review.  

Financing: 

Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 

100



California	Unemployment	Industry	&	Demographics	Data	Dashboard
(Dashboard	appears	better	when	viewed	in	full	screen	mode.	Click	the	icon	in	the	bottom	right-hand	corner	of	screen	next	to	download	icon.)

		About	This	Tool 		County	Claims 		County	Demographics 		County	Industry 	Statewide	Demographics 		Statewide	Industry

Claim	Type
UI	Claims
PUA	Claims

County
Madera

Claims	by	Week	(Sele..
Multiple	values

Claims	by	Y.. Multipl..

AGENDA PACKET 8.3

101



February 27, 2024 

Maiknue Vang 
Executive Director 
Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation 
2037 West Cleveland Avenue 
Madera, CA 93637 

Dear Maiknue Vang: 

ANNUAL REVIEW 
85% FORMULA GRANT 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 FINAL MONITORING REPORT 

This final monitoring report is to inform you of the results of the Employment 
Development Department, Compliance Review Office (CRO), Workforce Innovation 
and Opportunity Act (WIOA), on-site monitoring review of Madera County Workforce 
Investment Corporation’s (MCWIC) fiscal and program systems for Program Year (PY) 
2022-23.   

Our review was conducted under the authority of WIOA, Sections 183(a) and 
184(a)(4). The purpose of this review was to determine the level of compliance by the 
MCWIC with applicable federal and state laws, regulations, policies, and directives 
related to the WIOA grant, specific to financial management activities for PY 2022-23. 
The MCWIC was awarded WIOA funds to provide centralized comprehensive 
workforce services to adults, dislocated workers, youth, and rapid response. The 
scope of the review covered the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. 

For the review, we focused on the WIOA Youth program, policies and procedures, 
financial reporting, expenditures, cost allocation, indirect cost rate, cash management, 
internal controls, payroll, procurement, oversight of your subrecipients, eligibility, case 
management and supportive services. Additionally, we reviewed the America’s Job 
Center of CaliforniaSM, Memorandum of Understanding and Infrastructure Funding 
Agreement and how the shared costs were tracked and applied. 

The on-site review was conducted by Dan Richards from January 22, 2024 through 
January 26, 2024. The exit conference for this review was held on January 30, 2024. 

AGENDA PACKET 9.1

102



Maiknue Vang 
February 27, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 
 

 
 
 

We collected the information for this report through interviews with the MCWIC 
representatives; and by reviewing applicable policies, procedures, a sample of PY 
2022-23 expenditures, and your response to the Annual Review Questionnaire. 
 
 
FISCAL REVIEW RESULTS 
 
We conclude that we did not identify any areas of the MCWIC not meeting WIOA 
requirements concerning financial management. 
 
 
PROCUREMENT REVIEW RESULTS 
 
We conclude that we did not identify any areas of the MCWIC not meeting WIOA 
requirements concerning procurement. 
 
 
PROGRAM REVIEW RESULTS 
 
We conclude that we did not identify any areas of the MCWIC not meeting WIOA 
requirements concerning program management. 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Because the methodology for our monitoring review included sample testing, this 
report is not a comprehensive assessment of all areas included in our review. It is 
MCWIC’s responsibility to ensure that the systems, programs, and related activities 
comply with the WIOA grant program, federal and state regulations, and applicable 
state directives. Therefore, any deficiencies identified in subsequent reviews, such as 
an audit, would remain MCWIC’s responsibility. 
 
Please extend our appreciation to your staff for their cooperation and assistance 
during our review. If you have any questions regarding this report or the review that  
 
 
 
 

103



Maiknue Vang 
February 27, 2024 
Page 3 
 
 
 

 
 
 

was conducted, please contact Dan Richards, Compliance Monitoring Analyst, at 
Dan.Richards@edd.ca.gov or Melissa McDaniel, Compliance Monitoring Manager, at 
Melissa.McDaniel@edd.ca.gov.   
  
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
CINDY HARRINGTON, Office Chief 
Compliance Review Office 
 
cc: Jessica Roche, MCWIC 
 Bertha Vega, MCWIC 
 Gustavo Alatorre 
 Jennifer Gouvaia 
 Cynthia Harrington 
 Melissa McDaniel 
 Kimberlee Meyer 
 Yvette Quevedo 
 Tim Reynaga 
 Dan Richards 
 Charles Tobia 
 Natalie Villanueva 
 

104


	MCWIC Agenda 3.21.24
	SPECIAL MEETING
	A G E N D A
	REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION FOR ANY INDIVIDUAL WITH A DISABILITY Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, any individual with a disability who requires reasonable accommodation to attend or participate i...


	MCWIC item 6.1a MCWIC minutes 2024.2.22
	MCWIC item 7.1a Form 990 2022
	MCWIC item 7.2a  Section 125 POP Plan 2024
	MCWIC item 7.3a Bylaws MCWIC - revised 2024.3.28 DRAFT
	MCWIC item 8.1 Success Stories
	Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
	To:
	Maiknue Vang, Executive Director
	From:
	March 21, 2024
	Date:
	Subject:
	Information:
	Financing:
	Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act

	MCWIC item 8.1a Success Story Manuel S
	MCWIC item 8.2 WDB Update 3.18.24 Final
	Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
	To:
	Maiknue Vang, Executive Director
	From:
	March 21, 2024
	Date:
	Subject:
	Information:
	Financing:
	Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act/James Irvine Foundation

	MCWIC item 8.3 UI Claims 2.10.24 to 3.9.24
	Madera County Workforce Investment Corporation
	To:
	Maiknue Vang, Executive Director
	From:
	March 21, 2024
	Date:
	Subject:
	Information:
	Financing:
	Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act

	MCWIC item 8.3a California Initial UI Claims 2.10.24 to 3.9.24
	MCWIC item 9.1a Madera 22-23 Annual Review Final Report



